

Service manual

# VRV system air conditioner



VAM350J8VEB EKVDX32A2VEB VAM500J8VEB EKVDX50A2VEB VAM650J8VEB EKVDX80A2VEB VAM800J8VEB EKVDX100A2VEB VAM1000J8VEB VAM1500J8VEB VAM2000J8VEB draft – 07/02/2022 15:12

# Disclaimer

The present publication is drawn up by way of information only and does not constitute an offer binding upon Daikin Europe N.V.. Daikin Europe N.V. has compiled the content of this publication to the best of its knowledge. No express or implied warranty is given for the completeness, accuracy, reliability or fitness for particular purpose of its content and the products and services presented therein. Specifications are subject to change without prior notice. Daikin Europe N.V. explicitly rejects any liability for any direct or indirect damage, in the broadest sense, arising from or related to the use and/or interpretation of this publication. All content is copyrighted by Daikin Europe N.V..



# Version log

Version code	Description	Date
ESIE22-07	Document release	February 2022



# Table of Contents

1

2 3

11	Meanin	or of warnings and symbols	
1.1 1.2	Danger	g of warnings and symbols	
1.2 1.3	Warnin	лс	
1.5	Caution	5 <sup>5</sup>	1:
1.5	Notices		1
Gor	oral or	peration	1/
_			-
Tro	ublesho To rotri	Doting	19
5.1	3 1 1	Via the indoor unit remote controller BRC1H	1
2 7	5.1.1 Error br		1: ว
5.2	3 2 1	ΔΩ-ΩΩ – External protection device activated	2
	322	A0-00 External protection device activated matrix $A0-11 - B32$ leakage detection	
	3.2.3	A1-00 – Main PCB abnormality	2
	3.2.4	A3-00 – Drain water level abnormality	
	3.2.5	A3-08 – Drain pump connector open	2.
	3.2.6	A6-01-02-05-06 – Fan motor abnormality - motor lock	2
	3.2.7	A6-10-12-14-16 – Fan motor abnormality - overcurrent or IPM protection	2
	3.2.8	A6-11-13-15-17 – Fan motor abnormality - position detection error	2
	3.2.9	A6-22 – Unstable fan rpm	2
	3.2.10	A6-28 – Airflow rate below critical threshold	25
	3.2.11	A6-29 – Airflow rate too low	2
	3.2.12	A6-30 – Airflow rate lower than normal	3
	3.2.13	A8-01 – Fan motor abnormality - power supply abnormality	3
	3.2.14	A9-01 – Y1E Expansion valve coil abnormality	3
	3.2.15	A9-02 – Y1E Expansion valve body abnormality	3
	3.2.16	AF-00 – Drain back flow	3
	3.2.17	AJ-01 – A1P Capacity setting error	3.
	3.2.18	AJ-02 – A1P Setting error for Y1E expansion valve	3.
	3.2.19	C1-00 – Communication abnormality between main PCB and fan PCB	3
	3.2.20	C4-00 – Liquid thermistor abnormality	3
	3.2.21	C5-00 – Gas thermistor abnormality	3
	3.2.22	C6-01-11-21-31 – Compatibility error between main PCB and fan PCB	
	3.2.23	C6-02-12-22-32 – Setting error between main PCB and fan PCB	3
	3.2.24	C6-05-15-25-35 – Fan PCB EEPROM error	
	3.2.25	C6-05-15-26-36 – Fan PCB fin thermistor malfunction	
	3.2.20	C6-07-17-27-37 – Fan PCB In thermistor abnormality	
	3.2.27	C9-00 – Air thermistor abnormality	
	2.2.20	CA-00 – Discharge thermistor abnormality	
	3.2.29	CH-00 = CO2 sensor diatrin	
	3.2.50	CH-01 = R32 leak detection sensor life time is exceeded	
	2 2 2 2	CH 05 = R32 leak detection sensor life time <6 months	
	3 2 33	CH-10 - R32 leak detection sensor replacement to confirm	
	3.2.33	CJ-00 – Remote controller air thermistor abnormality	
	3.2.35	U5-04 – Communication abnormality between indoor unit main PCB and remote controller	4
	3.2.36	U5-06 – Supervisor remote controller not connected/not set	4
	3.2.37	U8-00 – Transmission error between Master and Slave remote controller	
	3.2.38	U9-01 – Other indoor unit has error	
	3.2.39	U9-02 – Other indoor unit has error	4
	3.2.40	UA-00 – Wrong remote controller	4
	3.2.41	UC-00 – Central address duplication error	4
	3.2.42	UE-00 – Communication abnormality with central controller	5
	3.2.43	UJ-34 – Capacity mismatch between VAM and DX module	5
	3.2.44	UJ-35 – Abnormality at VAM unit	5
	3.2.45	UJ-36 – Transmission error between VAM and EKVDX	5
	3.2.46	UJ-37 – VAM unit has A6-28 error	5
	3.2.47	UJ-38 – VAM unit has A6-29 error	5
	3.2.48	60-00 – External protection device activated	5
	3.2.49	64-01 – Indoor air thermistor malfunction	53
	3.2.50	64-02 – Indoor air thermistor out of range	5
	3.2.51	65-01 – Outdoor air thermistor malfunction	54
	3.2.52	65-02 – Outdoor air thermistor out of range	54



		3.2.53	65-03 – Low outdoor air temperature	. 55
		3.2.54	6A-00 – Damper related malfunction	. 55
4	Mai	ntenan	ice	57
	4.1	Mainter	nance for heat reclaim ventilation units	. 57
		4.1.1	Maintenance safety precautions	. 57
		4.1.2	Checklist for maintenance of the heat reclaim ventilation unit	. 58
		4.1.3	Maintenance of the air filter	. 58
		4.1.4	Maintenance of the heat exchange element	. 60
	4.2	Mainter	nance for DX units	. 60
		4.2.1	Checklist for yearly maintenance of the indoor unit	. 60
		4.2.2	Cleaning the air outlet	. 61
		4.2.3	Maintenance before a long stop period	. 61
		4.2.4	Maintenance after a long stop period	. 61
5	Tech	nnical d	lata	62
	5.1	Detailed	d information setting mode	. 62
		5.1.1	Detailed information setting mode: Indoor unit	. 62
		5.1.2	Detailed information setting mode: Remote controller	. 62
	5.2	Wiring	diagram	. 63
		5.2.1	- Wiring diagram: VAM-J8	. 63
		5.2.2	Wiring diagram: EKVDX	. 68
	5.3	Piping d	liagram	. 72
		5.3.1	Piping diagram: Indoor unit	. 72
	5.4	Compor	nent overview	. 73
		5.4.1	Component overview: DX unit	. 73
		5.4.2	Component overview: Heat reclaim ventilation unit	. 74
	5.5	Switchb	ox overview	. 77
	5.6	Field inf	formation report	. 79
	5.7	Service	tools	. 82
	5.8	Field set	ttings	. 83
		5.8.1	To retrieve the field settings	. 83
		5.8.2	Overview of field settings for DX units	. 88
		5.8.3	Overview of field settings for heat reclaim ventilation units	. 90



# 1 Safety precautions

The precautions described in this document cover very important topics, follow them carefully.

All activities described in the service manual must be performed by an authorized person.

If you are NOT sure how to install, operate or service the unit, contact your dealer.

In accordance with the applicable legislation, it might be necessary to provide a logbook with the product containing at least:

information on maintenance, repair work, results of tests, stand-by periods, ...

Also, at least, following information must be provided at an accessible place at the product:

- Instructions for shutting down the system in case of an emergency
- Name and address of fire department, police and hospital
- Name, address and day and night telephone numbers for obtaining service

In Europe, EN378 provides the necessary guidance for this logbook.

# 1.1 Meaning of warnings and symbols

<b>DANGER</b> Indicates a situation that results in death or serious injury.
DANGER: RISK OF ELECTROCUTION Indicates a situation that could result in electrocution.
DANGER: RISK OF BURNING/SCALDING Indicates a situation that could result in burning/scalding because of extreme hot or cold temperatures.
DANGER: RISK OF EXPLOSION Indicates a situation that could result in explosion.
WARNING Indicates a situation that could result in death or serious injury.
WARNING: FLAMMABLE MATERIAL
<b>CAUTION</b> Indicates a situation that could result in minor or moderate injury.



# NOTICE

Indicates a situation that could result in equipment or property damage.





#### INFORMATION

Indicates useful tips or additional information.

# 1.2 Dangers



- Do NOT leave the unit unattended when the service cover is removed.
- Protect electric componennts from getting wet while the service cover is opened.

# 1.3 Warnings



# WARNING

Improper installation or attachment of equipment or accessories could result in electrical shock, short-circuit, leaks, fire or other damage to the equipment. ONLY use accessories, optional equipment and spare parts made or approved by Daikin.



# WARNING

Do NOT apply any permanent inductive or capacitance loads to the circuit without ensuring that this will NOT exceed the permissible voltage and current permitted for the equipment in use.





If a fault exists that could compromise safety, Do NOT connect electrical supply to the circuit until it is satisfactorily dealt with. If the fault CANNOT be corrected immediately but it is necessary to continue operation, an adequate temporary solution MUST be used. This MUST be reported to the owner of the equipment so all parties are advised.

Initial safety checks MUST include that:

- capacitors are discharged: this MUST be done in a safe manner to avoid possibility of sparking,
- NO live electrical components and wiring are exposed while charging, recovering or purging the system.



#### WARNING

Make sure that the refrigerating piping and components are installed in a position where they are unlikely to be exposed to any corroding substance.



# WARNING

Make sure installation, testing and applied materials comply with applicable legislation (on top of the instructions described in the Daikin documentation).



# WARNING

Make sure the work site environment is clean and safe to work in. Beware of spilled fluids, like water, oil or other substances.

Protect bystanders from injury and property from possible damage cause by service works.



#### WARNING

If any work is to be conducted on the refrigerating equipment or any associated parts which involves brazing, an appropriate dry powder or  $CO_2$  fire extinguisher MUST be present.

When charging the unit, an appropriate dry powder or  $CO_2$  fire extinguisher MUST be present.



# WARNING

No person carrying out work in relation to a refrigerating system which involves exposing any pipe work shall use any sources of ignition in such a manner that it may lead to the risk of fire or explosion. All possible ignition sources, including cigarette smoking, MUST be kept sufficiently far away from the site of installation, repairing, removing and disposal, during which refrigerant can possibly be released to the surrounding space. Prior to work taking place, the area around the equipment is to be surveyed to make sure that there are no flammable hazards or ignition risks. "No Smoking" signs MUST be displayed.



#### WARNING

Tear apart and throw away plastic packaging bags so that nobody, especially children, can play with them. Possible risk: suffocation.



#### WARNING

During tests, NEVER pressurise the product with a pressure higher than the maximum allowable pressure (as indicated on the nameplate of the unit).





Make sure the total refrigerant charge is in accordance with the room size in which the unit is installed: please consult the detailed instructions on charging and allowed room sizes in the installation manual.



### WARNING

- NEVER mix different refrigerants or allow air to enter the refrigerant system.
- NEVER charge recovered refrigerant from another unit. Use recovered refrigerant only on the same unit where it was recovered from, or have it recycled at a certified facility.



#### WARNING

When reconnecting a connector to the PCB, make sure to connect it on the correct location and do NOT apply force, as this may damage the connector or connector pins of the PCB.



#### WARNING

ALWAYS recover the refrigerant. Do NOT release them directly into the environment. Use a vacuum pump to evacuate the installation.



#### WARNING

Removal of refrigerant MUST be according to the following:

When breaking into the refrigerant circuit to make repairs, be sure to remove the refrigerant from the system first. The refrigerant charge MUST be recovered into the correct recovery cylinders.



#### WARNING

Take sufficient precautions in case of refrigerant leakage. If refrigerant gas leaks, ventilate the area immediately. Possible risks:

- Excessive refrigerant concentrations in a closed room can lead to oxygen deficiency.
- Toxic gas might be produced if refrigerant gas comes into contact with fire.



#### WARNING

- Under no circumstances, potential sources of ignition SHALL be used in the searching for or detection of refrigerant leaks. A halide torch (or any other detector using a naked flame) MUST NOT be used.
- Ensure that the detector is NOT a potential source of ignition and is suitable for the detection of R32.
- If a leak is suspected, all naked flames MUST be removed or extinguished.
- Leak detection fluids are also suitable for use with most refrigerants but the use of detergents containing chlorine MUST be avoided as the chlorine may react with the refrigerant and corrode the copper pipe-work.
- If a leakage of refrigerant is found which requires brazing, all of the refrigerant MUST be recovered from the system, or isolated (by means of shut-off valves) in a part of the system remote from the leak.
- Only use the electronic leak tester for R32. The old flame leak tester CANNOT be used on a system with HFC refrigerant because there is no chlorine component in the refrigerant. In case of R32 (HFC) refrigerant, any flame in contact with (leaking) refrigerant is extremely dangerous.





In order to prevent oxygen deficiency and R32 combustion, keep the room wellventilated for a healthy work environment. Do NOT work in a confined space. If a refrigerant leak is detected in a confined room or an inadequately ventilated location, do NOT start the work until the area has been ventilated appropriately.

If the work area is NOT located in the open air, make sure the work area is adequately ventilated before breaking into the system or conducting any brazing. The ventilation MUST continue to operate during the period that the work is carried out to prevent accumulation of refrigerant in the work area. The ventilation should safely disperse any released refrigerant and preferably ventilate to the open air.



#### WARNING

Ensure that no external live wiring is exposed while charging, recovering or purging the system. Sparks created when live wiring is short-circuited might ignite the refrigerant if it is leaked into the room while charging, recovering or purging the system.



#### WARNING

Ensure that the unit is properly earthed prior to conducting maintenance or service or charging the system with refrigerant. Do NOT earth the unit to a utility pipe, surge absorber, or telephone earth. Incomplete earthing may cause electrical shock.

# WARNING

- ONLY use copper wires.
- Make sure the field wiring complies with the applicable legislation.
- All field wiring MUST be performed in accordance with the wiring diagram supplied with the product.
- NEVER squeeze bundled cables and make sure they do NOT come in contact with the piping and sharp edges. Make sure no external pressure is applied to the terminal connections.
- Make sure to install earth wiring. Do NOT earth the unit to a utility pipe, surge absorber, or telephone earth. Incomplete earth may cause electrical shock.
- Make sure to use a dedicated power circuit. NEVER use a power supply shared by another appliance.
- Make sure to install the required fuses or circuit breakers.
- Make sure to install an earth leakage protector. Failure to do so may cause electrical shock or fire.
- When installing the earth leakage protector, make sure it is compatible with the inverter (resistant to high frequency electric noise) to avoid unnecessary opening of the earth leakage protector.



#### WARNING

Make sure the markings on the unit remain visible and legible after inspection or repair work. Markings and signs that are illegible shall be corrected.

# WARNING

- After finishing the electrical work, confirm that each electrical component and terminal inside the electrical components box is connected securely.
- Make sure all covers are closed before starting up the unit.





- The area MUST be checked with an appropriate refrigerant detector prior to and during work, to ensure the technician is aware of potentially toxic or flammable atmospheres.
- Ensure that the leak detection equipment being used is suitable for use with all applicable refrigerants, i.e. non-sparking, adequately sealed or intrinsically safe.
- Prior to and during work, the area MUST be checked with an appropriate refrigerant detector capable of detecting R32 refrigerant, to ensure a work environment free of refrigerant.



#### WARNING

- Equipment MUST be labelled stating that it has been de-commissioned and emptied of refrigerant.
- The label MUST be dated and signed.
- For appliances containing flammable refrigerants, ensure that there are labels on the equipment stating the equipment contains flammable refrigerant.



#### WARNING

Before carrying out refrigerant recovery procedure, it is essential that the technician is completely familiar with the equipment and all its details. It is recommended good practice that all refrigerants are recovered safely. Prior to the task being carried out, an oil and refrigerant sample MUST be taken in case analysis is required prior to reuse of recovered refrigerant. It is essential that electrical power is available before the task is commenced.

- Become familiar with the equipment and its operation.
- Isolate system electrically.
- Ensure that mechanical handling equipment is available, if required, for handling refrigerant cylinders.
- Ensure that all personal protective equipment is available and is used correctly.
- Ensure that the recovery process is supervised at all times by a competent person.
- Ensure that recovery equipment and cylinders are conform to the appropriate standards.
- If a vacuum is NOT possible, make a manifold so that refrigerant can be removed from various parts of the system.
- Make sure that cylinder is situated on the scales before recovery takes place.
- Start the recovery machine and operate in accordance with instructions.
- Do NOT overfill cylinders (no more than 60% volume liquid charge).
- Do NOT exceed the maximum working pressure of the cylinder, NOT even temporarily.
- When the cylinders have been filled correctly and the process completed, make sure that the cylinders and the equipment are removed from site promptly and all isolation valves on the equipment are closed.
- Recovered refrigerant MUST NOT be charged into another refrigerating system unless it has been cleaned and checked.



#### WARNING

All maintenance staff and others working in the local area MUST be instructed on the nature of work being carried out.





Provide adequate measures to prevent that the unit can be used as a shelter by small animals. Small animals that make contact with electrical parts can cause malfunctions, smoke or fire.



# WARNING

Prior to start working on systems containing flammable refrigerant, safety checks are necessary to ensure that the risk of ignition is minimised. Therefore, some instructions should be followed.

Please refer to the service manual for more information.

# WARNING

- In case refrigerant recovery is required, use the appropriate service ports.
- If applicable for your unit, use the appropriate recovery mode or field setting to smoothly recover the refrigerant.
- ONLY use leak free hoses, couplings and manifolds in good working condition.
- ONLY use recovery cylinders designated and labelled to recover R32. Note that thread connection to the cylinder is counter clock.
- Always use a calibrated scale in good condition prior and during the refrigerant recovery process to determine the weight of the recovered refrigerant into the external refrigerant cylinder.
- Read the operation instructions of the recovery unit prior to connecting the recovery unit. Verify the recovery unit is suited for R32 refrigerant, check that it is in good working condition, has been properly maintained and that any associated electrical components are sealed to prevent ignition in the event of a refrigerant release. Consult manufacturer if in doubt.
- Do NOT overfill the refrigerant cylinder, confirm with the supplier of the refrigerant cylinder about maximum filling ratio if NOT mentioned on the refrigerant cylinder itself. Generally the maximum filling amount should be limited to 60% of the maximum volume of the cylinder.
- Do NOT exceed the maximum working pressure of the refrigerant cylinder, NOT even temporarily.
- When the cylinders have been filled correctly, and the refrigerant recovery process is completed, make sure that the cylinders and the equipment are removed from site promptly and all stop valves on the equipment are (kept) closed.
- The recovered refrigerant MUST be returned to the refrigerant supplier in the correct recovery cylinder, and the relevant waste transfer note arranged. Do NOT mix refrigerants in recovery units and especially NOT in cylinders.
- Recovered refrigerant MUST NOT be charged into another refrigerant system unless it has been cleaned and checked.



# WARNING

If compressor is to be removed, ensure that the compressor has been evacuated to an acceptable level to make sure that flammable refrigerant does NOT remain within the lubricant. The evacuation process MUST be carried out prior to returning the compressor to the supplier. During the refrigerant recovery, confirm that the crankcase heater of the compressor body is energized to accelerate this process. When oil is drained from a system, it MUST be carried out safely.



# 1.4 Cautions



# CAUTION

Wear adequate personal protective equipment (protective gloves, safety glasses,...) when installing, maintaining or servicing the system.

# CAUTION

To avoid injury, do NOT touch the air inlet or aluminium fins of the unit.

# CAUTION

- Do NOT place any objects or equipment on top of the unit.
- Do NOT sit, climb or stand on the unit.

# 1.5 Notices





### NOTICE

Make sure the field piping and connections are NOT subjected to stress.



# 2 General operation

The EKVDX is an airconditioning unit for pretreatment of incoming supply air from a VAM heat reclaim ventilation unit. For comfort temperature control, it is still required to install a normal indoor unit.

Do not place the EKVDX before the heat reclaim ventilation unit.

# INFORMATION

The following figures are just examples and may NOT completely match your system layout.



2–1 For VAM500~1000 and EKVDX32~80





- Z-2 For VAM1500+2000 and EKVDX100
  - a Heat reclaim ventilation unit (VAM)
  - **b** EKVDX indoor unit
  - c Outdoor unit
  - **d** User interface
  - e Air inlet duct for EKVDX indoor unit
  - f Discharge air
  - **g** Duct flange(s)
  - **h** Drain pipe
  - i Refrigerant piping + transmission cable

The EKVDX-A DX coil module is a unit based on the FXSA-A VRV indoor unit (without its fan). The new VAM-J8 range is mechanically the same as the current VAM-J series but upgraded from PCB and control software point of view to allow cooperation with the DX coil module. The two units are connected with a field supplied duct and with necessary wiring for the control.





EKVDX-A/VAM-J8 is a fresh air pre-treatment solution. Please keep in mind that this is NOT a comfort solution. It CAN be connected to a VRV IV, VRV IV+ or VRV5 Outdoor Unit. There are some exception for combinations due to R32 safety, such as VAM350J8 and EKVDX32A2 combination is NOT allowed, these combination rules are present in the Databook. The unit is delivered by default for VRV5 connection.

VAM-J8 is flexible for installation: CAN be installed horizontally, vertically or upside down and it is also possible to choose the connecting duct length in function of installation and available ESP conditions. EKVDX-A however, is NOT flexible for installation as you might expect, because it is a DX unit. See installer reference guide for more details.

VAM-J8 unit CAN be installed stand-alone as a Heat Recovery Ventilator while EKVDX-A CANNOT be installed stand-alone.



The two units are connected to each other with the use of field supplied ducts. Depending on the combination of units a duct reducer may be required in order to match the diameter of the duct connection of the two units. The reducer is placed inside the EKVDX-A unit for easier transportation.



When combining VAM + EKVDX-A, the setpoint on the remote controller will be the target temperature that supply air should have at the end of the duct (just before the ventilated room). Achieving the target temperature will be done indirectly via the measurement of R5T (temperature after coil) and a correction factor (CF) functionality available on the remote controller:

 If ducting is long or NOT well insulated or R5T does NOT correspond to the average supply air temperature, target temperature will be different than R5T. In these cases CF CAN be applied to increase/reduce evaporation/condensation temperature to achieve such R5T which will result to the required target temperature.

In cooling, target temperature = R5T + CF In heating, target temperature = R5T – CF

- If ducting is short or well insulated, the installer can consider that R5T= target temperature, so NO need to set any CF (CF=0 by default).
- Correction factor CAN be set by field setting 20-13. Default setting is 0. CF CAN be set in range 0~7 with increments of 0.5.

Example: Remote controller is set to Cooling and temperature is set to 19°C. R5T (discharge temperature) is 19°C but we expect that air will reach the room at 21°C due to heat losses in the ducting. In this case, you MUST use of correction factor 21-13=5 [it means CF=2]. Then the unit tries to achieve R5T = 17°C which will result to target temperature = 19°C.

# Wiring

INDEPENDENT SYSTEM



F1/F2 wiring should ONLY be connected to EKVDX-A in case of EKVDX-A/VAM pair. Upon communication initialization of F1/F2 communication circuit via VRV outdoor unit, if EKVDX-A is detected alone (due to installation mistake or issues at P1/P2 wiring between EKVDX-A and VAM etc) then UJ-35 error will be triggered. If F1/F2 is connected to VAM as well, then UJ-36 error will be triggered.

BRC1H52/82\* is the dedicated remote controller for R32 units. In case of VRV R32 and BRC1H51/81 is used, U5-04 error will be triggered. No more than 1 pair of EKVDX-A/VAM CAN be connected through P1/P2 wiring. EKVDX-A/VAM is ALSO

compatible with VRV IV and VRV IV+, in this case a field setting is required at VAM and EKVDX-A unit to indicate system is R410A. In this case BRC1H51/81 can be used.

VAM CAN be installed standalone as well. In this case it should have a separate remote controller. If centralized control is to be used, then F1/F2 In wiring will include the standalone VAM. In this case VAM will NOT be registered as a unit via VRV, but it will be visible through the central controller.



# 3 Troubleshooting

- 3.1 To retrieve error codes and check error history
- 3.1.1 Via the indoor unit remote controller BRC1H

1

# INFORMATION

Images are in English and for reference ONLY. For more details on the Madoka Assistant please refer to the BRC1H training course material which is available on the Daikin Business Portal.

# To retrieve the error code

To indicate a system error, the controller displays  $\Delta$  on the messages zone of the home screen.



1 Press the middle button  ${f O}$  to enter the main menu from the home screen.

**Result:** An error screen is displayed.

2 Press the middle button **O** to return to the home screen.

Active error codes are also accessible through the Madoka Assistant for BRC1H.

The active error is shown on the home screen.





**3** Tap the active error.

**Result:** The detail(s) of the error(s) are shown on the Notifications screen.

# To check the error history

To check the error history with the Madoka Assistant for BRC1H:

#	Action	Image for reference	Result
1	Tap the settings icon.	1222 0.0     St St 2.4 (59.8)       ←     Office 1       ●     ①       ①     ①       24°C     □       ●     ①       ●     ②       ●     ○       ●     ○       ●     ○       ●     ○       ●     ●	The Unit settings screen is displayed.
2	Tap Errors and warnings.	1224 O O D O UNIT Settings       C     Unit settings       Function lock     Disabled >       Maintenance     ^       Errors and warnings     >       Unit number     >       AirNet address     >       Group address     >       Contact information     >       Field settings     >       Unit status     >       Operating hours     >	The Errors and warnings screen is displayed.
3	Tap Error history.	Errors and warnings Consult the error history and disable error and warning notifications.      Error history     Display errors     Display errors     Display warnings     O      When you disable error and warning notifications      When you disable error and warning     entities and the automatically get enabled     again after 4 hours.	At-01 Remote Controller are for set



# 3.2 Error based troubleshooting

# 3.2.1 A0-00 – External protection device activated

# **EKVDX-A units**

Trigger	Effect	Reset
T1-T2 input is ON and field setting 22-1=3.	Unit will stop operating	Auto reset.

To solve the error code



# INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

- Check if the field setting 22-1 is correctly set according to the following wiring situations on T1-T2 of X1M terminal of the indoor unit. See "5.8 Field settings" [> 83]. Correct as needed.
  - No wiring connected: Field setting 22-1=1
  - Wiring connected to a window or door contact: Field setting 22-1=1
  - Wiring connected to a remote operation switch: Field setting 22-1=2
  - Wiring connected to an external protection device (fire alarm, R32 leak detection sensor,...): Field setting 22-1=3
     Possible cause: Incorrect field setting.
- 2 If wiring connected to T1-T2 of X1M terminal of the indoor unit, check correct connection and continuity of the wiring. See "5.2 Wiring diagram" [▶ 63].

**Possible cause:** Faulty or damaged wiring between T1-T2 of X1M terminal of the indoor unit and external device.

- **3** If wiring is connected, measure on T1-T2 of X1M terminal of the indoor unit to check for the correct functioning of the external device:
  - Wiring connected to a window or door contact: Open circuit (unit continues previous operation, remote controller enabled) when window / door is closed, short-circuit (forced stop, remote controller buttons disabled) when window / door is open. Replace window / door contact if incorrect measurement.

**Possible cause:** Faulty window / door contact.

- Wiring connected to a remote operation switch: Open circuit when OFF command to the unit, short-circuit when ON command to the unit. Replace remote operation switch if incorrect measurement.
  - **Possible cause:** Faulty remote operation switch. Wiring connected to an external protection device
- Wiring connected to an external protection device (fire alarm, R32 leak detection sensor,...): Short-circuit when normal operation, open circuit (forced stop with error code A0-00) when external protection device is active. If open circuit is detected, check and eliminate the root cause why the protection device is activated. Do NOT try to run the unit until the root cause is eliminated. If NO root cause was found, protection device may be faulty. Replace as needed.

**Possible cause:** Root cause of external protection device activation or faulty external protection device.

**4** Perform a power reset. If the error disappears and is raised again after a while, check for the presence of an external source causing electrical noise. See External factors.

**Possible cause:** External source may cause interference.

**5** Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



#### INFORMATION

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

# 3.2.2 A0-11 - R32 leakage detection

# **EKVDX-A units**

Trigger	Effect	Reset
The R32 sensor indoor unit detected a refrigerant leak while fan of indoor unit is switched ON.	Indoor unit will stop operating after end of automatic refrigerant recovery to the outdoor unit.	<ul> <li>Power reset of the indoor unit.</li> <li>Set field setting 25-14-01 to 02 on the remote controller of the faulty indoor unit.</li> </ul>
		<ul> <li>Outdoor unit shows error "UA-55". Set field setting 2-47 to 1 on the outdoor unit.</li> </ul>

# To solve the error code



# INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

- **1** Check the field piping for refrigerant leak. Check saturation pressure of the field piping via the liquid service port and gas stop valve.
- 2 If saturation pressure (gas and/or liquid) <outdoor ambient temperature, refrigerant leak is present. Perform as follows to repair the refrigerant leak:
  - Recover the refrigerant, see To recuperate the refrigerant.
  - Repair the field piping.
  - Perform a pressure test of the field piping.
  - Replace the R32 leak detection sensor of the indoor unit with error code A0-11. After replacement, indoor unit will display error code CH-10.
  - Recharge the refrigerant at the outdoor unit. Consult amount sticker. See installation manual of the outdoor unit for correct refrigerant charge procedure.
  - Fill in the logbook.
     Possible cause: Refrigerant leak at indoor unit side.
- **3** If saturation pressure (gas and/or liquid) = outdoor ambient temperature, NO refrigerant leak is present. Perform as described below.
- 4 Perform a check of the R32 leak detection sensor of the faulty indoor unit. See R32 leak detection sensor.

Possible cause: Faulty R32 leak detection sensor.

**5** Check if any external (foreign) vapor substance influenced the functioning of the R32 leak detection sensor. Repair as needed.



**Possible cause:** External (foreign) vapor substance reacted with R32 leak detection sensor.

6 Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



#### INFORMATION

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

#### 3.2.3 A1-00 – Main PCB abnormality

#### **EKVDX-A and VAM-J8 units**



#### INFORMATION

In case of EKVDX-A + VAM-J8 combination: check via the remote controller which indoor unit generates this error. Perform procedures described below for the applicable indoor unit.

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Data read error from EEPROM.	Unit will stop operating.	Power reset of indoor unit.

### To solve the error code



1 Perform a power reset. If the error disappears and is raised again after a while, check for the presence of an external source causing electrical noise. See External factors.

Possible cause: External source may cause interference.

2 Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

**Possible cause:** Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



# INFORMATION

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

#### 3.2.4 A3-00 – Drain water level abnormality

#### **EKVDX-A units**

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Float switch is open circuit during normal operation.	Unit willl stop operating.	Remote controller reset.

# To solve the error code



#### INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.



# 3 | Troubleshooting

1 Check the power supply to the indoor unit. See Power supply.

#### Possible cause:

- Faulty or disturbance of the power supply (imbalance),
- Phase missing,
- Power drop,
- Short circuit.
- **2** Check for excess water level in the drain pan. Empty the drain pan and correct installation of drain piping as needed. See indoor unit installation manual for more detailed information.

**Possible cause:** Excess water in the drain pan and/or incorrect installation of drain piping.

**3** Perform a check of the float switch. See Float switch.

Possible cause: Faulty float switch.

4 Perform a check of the drain pump. See Drain pump.

**Possible cause:** Faulty drain pump.

**5** Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



#### INFORMATION

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

#### 3.2.5 A3-08 – Drain pump connector open

#### **EKVDX-A units**

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Drain pump NOT detected.	Unit will stop operating.	Power reset.

# To solve the error code



#### **INFORMATION**

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

**1** Perform a check of the drain pump. See Drain pump.

Possible cause: Faulty drain pump.

**2** Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



#### INFORMATION



# 3.2.6 A6-01-02-05-06 - Fan motor abnormality - motor lock

# VAM-J8 units

Trigger			Effect	Effect		Reset		
Fan speed does NOT rise when PCB command fan ON.		Units will stop operating.		Remote controller reset.				
	Sub code	Unit		Fan motor			Fan PCB	
	01	VAM350	)~650J8	Supply air		M1F	A2P	
		VAM800	)+1000J8	Supply air		M2F	A3P	
		VAM150	0+2000J8	Supply air (bo	ottom)	M2F	A3P	

	VAM1500+2000J8	Supply air (bottom)	M2F	A3P
02	VAM350~650J8	Exhaust air	M2F	A2P
	VAM800+1000J8	Exhaust air	M1F	A2P
	VAM1500+2000J8	Exhaust air (bottom)	M1F	A2P
05	VAM1500+2000J8	Supply air (top)	M4F	A5P
06	VAM1500+200018	Exhaust air (top)	M3F	A4P

#### To solve the error code

# **INFORMATION**

#### It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

1 Check the power supply to the indoor unit. See Power supply.

#### Possible cause:

- Faulty or disturbance of the power supply (imbalance),
- Phase missing,
- Power drop,
- Short circuit.
- **2** Depending on your unit, perform a check of the appropriate indoor unit fan motor (see table above). See Indoor unit fan motor.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit fan motor.

**3** Depending on your unit, perform a check of the appropriate indoor unit fan PCB (see table above). See Indoor unit fan PCB.

**Possible cause:** Faulty indoor unit fan PCB.

4 Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

**Possible cause:** Faulty indoor unit main PCB.

# i

# INFORMATION

# 3.2.7 A6-10-12-14-16 - Fan motor abnormality - overcurrent or IPM protection

# VAM-J8 units

Trig	Frigger		Effect		Reset		
PCB curr	PCB detects too high current.		Units will stop operating.		Remote controller reset.		
	Sub code Unit			Fan motor			Fan PCB
	10	VAM350	)~650J8	Supply air		M1F	A2P
	VAM800 VAM150		)+1000J8	Supply air		M2F	A3P
			0+2000J8	Supply air (bo	ottom)	M2F	A3P
	12	2 VAM350~650J8		Exhaust air		M2F	A2P
	VAM800 VAM150		)+1000J8	Exhaust air		M1F	A2P
			0+2000J8	Exhaust air (k	oottom)	M1F	A2P
	14	VAM150	0+2000J8	Supply air (to	p)	M4F	A5P
	16	VAM150	0+2000J8	Exhaust air (t	op)	M3F	A4P

# To solve the error code



# INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

**1** Check the power supply to the indoor unit. See Power supply.

#### Possible cause:

- Faulty or disturbance of the power supply (imbalance),
- Phase missing,
- Power drop,
- Short circuit.
- **2** Depending on your unit, perform a check of the appropriate indoor unit fan motor (see table above). See Indoor unit fan motor.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit fan motor.

**3** Depending on your unit, perform a check of the appropriate indoor unit fan PCB (see table above). See Indoor unit fan PCB.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit fan PCB.

4 Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



#### **INFORMATION**



# 3.2.8 A6-11-13-15-17 - Fan motor abnormality - position detection error

# VAM-J8 units

Trigger	Effect	Reset
While unit is running: actual rotation speed by Hall IC sensor on fan motor <fan step<br="">command by PCB or no position signal from Hall IC sensor.</fan>	Units will stop operating.	Remote controller reset.

Sub code	Unit	Fan motor		Fan PCB
11	VAM350~650J8	Supply air	M1F	A2P
	VAM800+1000J8	Supply air	M2F	A3P
	VAM1500+2000J8	Supply air (bottom)	M2F	A3P
13	VAM350~650J8	Exhaust air	M2F	A2P
	VAM800+1000J8	Exhaust air	M1F	A2P
	VAM1500+2000J8	Exhaust air (bottom)	M1F	A2P
15	VAM1500+2000J8	Supply air (top)	M4F	A5P
17	VAM1500+2000J8	Exhaust air (top)	M3F	A4P

### To solve the error code



#### INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

**1** Check the power supply to the indoor unit. See Power supply.

#### Possible cause:

- Faulty or disturbance of the power supply (imbalance),
- Phase missing,
- Power drop,
- Short circuit.
- **2** Depending on your unit, perform a check of the appropriate indoor unit fan motor (see table above). See Indoor unit fan motor.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit fan motor.

**3** Depending on your unit, perform a check of the appropriate indoor unit fan PCB (see table above). See Indoor unit fan PCB.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit fan PCB.

4 Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

**Possible cause:** Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



#### INFORMATION

3.2.9 A6-22 – Unstable fan rpm

# VAM-J8 units

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Fan PCB detects irregular	Unit will NOT stop	Auto reset.
fan rpm signals.	operating.	

# To solve the error code



INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

1 Check the power supply to the indoor unit. See Power supply.

# Possible cause:

- Faulty or disturbance of the power supply (imbalance),
- Phase missing,
- Power drop,
- Short circuit.
- **2** Perform a check of the indoor unit fan motors. See Indoor unit fan motor.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit fan motor.

**3** Perform a check of the indoor unit fan PCBs. See Indoor unit fan PCB.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit fan PCB.

4 Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



# INFORMATION

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

# 3.2.10 A6-28 – Airflow rate below critical threshold

# VAM-J8 units

Trigger	Effect	Reset
The airflow is lower than the legal limit.	VAM and EKVDX unit will stop operating. Outdoor unit connected to EKVDX unit will stop operating.	Power reset.

# To solve the error code



# INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

1 This error can ONLY occur if VAM-J8 and EKVDX-A are installed together where field settings are 28-10=2 and 29-15=2. If it's a standalone VAM-J8 make sure to perform correct field settings. See "5.8 Field settings" [▶ 83].

Possible cause: Incorrect field settings.

**2** Check that the ducting is compliant with the installation limits. See installer reference guide.

**Possible cause:** Ducting is incorrect, too long or has incorrect size.

- 3 Clean the air filter of the indoor unit(s). See "4 Maintenance" [▶ 57]. Possible cause: Faulty or dirty air filter.
- Perform a check of the indoor air thermistor. See Thermistors.Possible cause: Faulty indoor air thermistor.
- 5 Perform a check of the outdoor air thermistor. See Thermistors.Possible cause: Faulty outdoor air thermistor.
- 6 Perform a check of the indoor unit fan motors. See Indoor unit fan motor.Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit fan motor.
- Perform a check of the indoor unit fan PCBs. See Indoor unit fan PCB.Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit fan PCB.
- 8 Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



#### INFORMATION

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

# 3.2.11 A6-29 – Airflow rate too low

# VAM-J8 units

Trigger	Effect	Reset
The airflow is lower than the threshold level.	VAM and EKVDX unit will stop operating.	Power reset.

# To solve the error code



#### INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

1 This error can ONLY occur if VAM-J8 and EKVDX-A are installed together where field settings are 28-10=2 and 29-15=2. If it's a standalone VAM-J8 make sure to perform correct field settings. See "5.8 Field settings" [▶ 83].

**Possible cause:** Incorrect field settings.

**2** Check that the ducting is compliant with the installation limits. See installer reference guide.

**Possible cause:** Ducting is incorrect, too long or has incorrect size.

**3** Clean the air filter of the indoor unit(s). See "4 Maintenance" [> 57].

Possible cause: Faulty or dirty air filter.

4 Perform a check of the indoor air thermistor. See Thermistors.

**Possible cause:** Faulty indoor air thermistor.

- 5 Perform a check of the outdoor air thermistor. See Thermistors.Possible cause: Faulty outdoor air thermistor.
- 6 Perform a check of the indoor unit fan motors. See Indoor unit fan motor.

**Possible cause:** Faulty indoor unit fan motor.

- Perform a check of the indoor unit fan PCBs. See Indoor unit fan PCB.Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit fan PCB.
- 8 Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



#### INFORMATION

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

# 3.2.12 A6-30 – Airflow rate lower than normal

#### VAM-J8 units

Trigger	Effect	Reset
The airflow is lower than the threshold level.	Unit will NOT stop operating.	Auto reset.

# To solve the error code

INFORMATION
It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

1 This error can ONLY occur if VAM-J8 and EKVDX-A are installed together where field settings are 28-10=2 and 29-15=2. If it's a standalone VAM-J8 make sure to perform correct field settings. See "5.8 Field settings" [▶ 83].

**Possible cause:** Incorrect field settings.

**2** Check that the ducting is compliant with the installation limits. See installer reference guide.

**Possible cause:** Ducting is incorrect, too long or has incorrect size.

- 3 Clean the air filter of the indoor unit(s). See "4 Maintenance" [▶ 57]. Possible cause: Faulty or dirty air filter.
- 4 Perform a check of the indoor air thermistor. See Thermistors.

**Possible cause:** Faulty indoor air thermistor.

- 5 Perform a check of the outdoor air thermistor. See Thermistors.Possible cause: Faulty outdoor air thermistor.
- 6 Perform a check of the indoor unit fan motors. See Indoor unit fan motor.Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit fan motor.
- Perform a check of the indoor unit fan PCBs. See Indoor unit fan PCB.Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit fan PCB.
- 8 Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

**Possible cause:** Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



#### INFORMATION

# 3.2.13 A8-01 – Fan motor abnormality - power supply abnormality

#### VAM-J8 units

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Input voltage detected by PCB too low or too high.	Units will stop operating.	Remote controller reset.

#### To solve the error code



#### INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

**1** Check the power supply to the indoor unit. See Power supply.

# Possible cause:

- Faulty or disturbance of the power supply (imbalance),
- Phase missing,
- Power drop,
- Short circuit.
- 2 Perform a check of the indoor unit fan PCBs. See Indoor unit fan PCB.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit fan PCB.

- Perform a check of the indoor unit fan motors. See Indoor unit fan motor.Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit fan motor.
- 4 Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

**Possible cause:** Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



#### INFORMATION

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

# 3.2.14 A9-01 – Y1E Expansion valve coil abnormality

#### **EKVDX-A units**

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Upon power reset, Y1E expansion valve coil is NOT detected.	Unit will stop operating.	Power reset of indoor unit.

# To solve the error code



#### INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

**1** Check the power supply to the indoor unit. See Power supply.

#### Possible cause:

- Faulty or disturbance of the power supply (imbalance),
- Phase missing,
- Power drop,
- Short circuit.

2 Perform a power reset. If the error disappears and is raised again after a while, check for the presence of an external source causing electrical noise. See External factors.

**Possible cause:** External source may cause interference.

**3** Perform a check of the indoor unit expansion valve. See Expansion valve.

**Possible cause:** Faulty expansion valve.

4 Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

# 3.2.15 A9-02 – Y1E Expansion valve body abnormality

### **EKVDX-A units**

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Difference between gas	The indoor unit with this	Power reset of indoor
temperature and liquid	error will stop refrigerant	unit.
temperature too high or	flow (expansion valve	
liquid temperature too	OFF) and VAM unit will	
low during cooling	resume fan operation (fan	
operation, thermostat	ON). All other indoor units	
OFF.	and outdoor unit will	
	continue operating.	

# To solve the error code

# INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

**1** Check the power supply to the indoor unit. See Power supply.

# Possible cause:

- Faulty or disturbance of the power supply (imbalance),
- Phase missing,
- Power drop,
- Short circuit.
- **2** Perform a power reset. If the error disappears and is raised again after a while, check for the presence of an external source causing electrical noise. See External factors.

Possible cause: External source may cause interference.

**3** Perform a check of the indoor unit refrigerant gas thermistor. See Thermistors.

**Possible cause:** Faulty refrigerant gas thermistor or connector fault.

**4** Perform a check of the indoor unit refrigerant liquid thermistor. See Thermistors.

**Possible cause:** Faulty refrigerant liquid thermistor.

**5** Perform a check of the indoor unit expansion valve. See Expansion valve.



**Possible cause:** Faulty expansion valve.

6 Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

**Possible cause:** Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



#### INFORMATION

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

# 3.2.16 AF-00 - Drain back flow

#### **EKVDX-A units**

Trigger	Effect	Reset
During drain pump OFF, float switch opens, drain pump recovery operation starts for 10 minutes. When drain pump recovery restarted 5 times, error code AF-00 is displayed.	Unit will stop thermostat during drain pump recovery operation.	Auto reset.

# To solve the error code



#### INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

**1** Check for excess water level in the drain pan. Check drain connector to the common drain pipe, and make sure minimum height is respected. Empty the drain pan and correct installation of drain piping as needed. See indoor unit installation manual for more detailed information.

**Possible cause:** Excess water in the drain pan and/or incorrect installation of drain piping. Drain water from other operating indoor unit may run into the indoor unit with non-operating drain pump.

2 Perform a check of the float switch. See Float switch.

**Possible cause:** Faulty float switch.

**3** Perform a check of the drain pump. See Drain pump.

Possible cause: Faulty drain pump.

4 Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



#### **INFORMATION**



3.2.17 AJ-01 – A1P Capacity setting error

# **EKVDX-A and VAM-J8 units**



#### **INFORMATION**

In case of EKVDX-A + VAM-J8 combination: check via the remote controller which indoor unit generates this error. Perform procedures described below for the applicable indoor unit.

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Capacity class CANNOT be	Unit will stop operating.	Power reset of indoor
read by indoor unit main		unit.
PCB.		

#### To solve the error code



# **INFORMATION**

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

**1** Check the power supply to the indoor unit. See Power supply.

#### Possible cause:

- Faulty or disturbance of the power supply (imbalance),
- Phase missing,
- Power drop,
- Short circuit.
- 2 Perform a power reset. If the error disappears and is raised again after a while, check for the presence of an external source causing electrical noise. See External factors.

**Possible cause:** External source may cause interference.

3 Check if the correct spare part is installed for the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit main PCB. Check that the correct capacity setting adapter is connected to X23A of the PCB.

**Possible cause:** Incorrect spare part PCB or incorrect capacity setting adapter.

**4** Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



#### **INFORMATION**

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

# 3.2.18 AJ-02 – A1P Setting error for Y1E expansion valve

### **EKVDX-A units**

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Y1E expansion valve type CANNOT be read by PCB A1P.	Unit will stop operating.	Power reset of indoor unit.



#### To solve the error code

#### INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

**1** Check the power supply to the indoor unit. See Power supply.

#### Possible cause:

- Faulty or disturbance of the power supply (imbalance),
- Phase missing,
- Power drop,
- Short circuit.
- **2** Perform a power reset. If the error disappears and is raised again after a while, check for the presence of an external source causing electrical noise. See External factors.

**Possible cause:** External source may cause interference.

**3** Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

**Possible cause:** Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



#### INFORMATION

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

3.2.19 C1-00 – Communication abnormality between main PCB and fan PCB

Trigger	Effect	Reset
When normal transmission between main PCB and fan PCB is NOT conducted for a certain duration (15 seconds or more).	Unit will stop operating.	Power reset.

#### To solve the error code

- **1** Perform power reset. If error is NOT resolved:
  - Perform a check of the indoor unit fan PCBs. See Indoor unit fan PCB.
     Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit fan PCB.
     Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit main PCB.
     Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



#### **INFORMATION**

3.2.20 C4-00 – Liquid thermistor abnormality

# **EKVDX-A units**

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Indoor unit liquid thermistor read-out is out of range.	Unit will stop operating.	Auto reset.

# To solve the error code



# INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

**1** Perform a check of the indoor unit refrigerant liquid thermistor. See Thermistors.

Possible cause: Faulty refrigerant liquid thermistor.

2 Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

**Possible cause:** Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



#### **INFORMATION**

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

# 3.2.21 C5-00 – Gas thermistor abnormality

# **EKVDX-A units**

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Indoor unit gas thermistor read-out is out of range.	Unit will stop operating.	Auto reset.

# To solve the error code



#### INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

**1** Perform a check of the indoor unit refrigerant gas thermistor. See Thermistors.

**Possible cause:** Faulty refrigerant gas thermistor or connector fault.

2 Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

**Possible cause:** Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



#### INFORMATION


## 3.2.22 C6-01-11-21-31 – Compatibility error between main PCB and fan PCB

## VAM-J8 units

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Incompatibility detected between main PCB and fan PCB.	Units will stop operating.	Power reset.
Sub code	Unit	Fan PCB
01	VAM350~650J8	A2P
	VAM800+1000J8	A3P
	VAM1500+2000J8	A3P
11	VAM350~650J8	A2P
	VAM800+1000J8	A2P
	VAM1500+2000J8	A2P
21	VAM1500+2000J8	A5P
31	VAM1500+2000J8	A4P

## To solve the error code



#### INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

**1** Depending on your unit, check if the correct spare part is installed for the appropriate indoor unit fan PCB (see table above). See Indoor unit fan PCB.

Possible cause: Incorrect spare part PCB.

**2** Check if the correct spare part is installed for the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit main PCB. Check that the correct capacity setting adapter is connected to X23A of the PCB.

**Possible cause:** Incorrect spare part PCB or incorrect capacity setting adapter.



#### INFORMATION

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

## 3.2.23 C6-02-12-22-32 – Setting error between main PCB and fan PCB

#### VAM-J8 units

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Setting error detected between main PCB and fan PCB.	Units will stop operating.	Power reset.
Sub code	Unit	Fan PCB
02	VAM350~650J8	A2P
	VAM800+1000J8	A3P



## 3 | Troubleshooting

Sub code	Unit	Fan PCB
12	VAM350~650J8	A2P
	VAM800+1000J8	A2P
	VAM1500+2000J8	A2P
22	VAM1500+2000J8	A5P
32	VAM1500+2000J8	A4P

## To solve the error code



## INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

**1** Depending on your unit, check if the correct spare part is installed for the appropriate indoor unit fan PCB (see table above). See Indoor unit fan PCB.

**Possible cause:** Incorrect spare part PCB.

**2** Check if the correct spare part is installed for the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit main PCB. Check that the correct capacity setting adapter is connected to X23A of the PCB.

**Possible cause:** Incorrect spare part PCB or incorrect capacity setting adapter.



#### INFORMATION

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

## 3.2.24 C6-05-15-25-35 - Fan PCB EEPROM error

#### VAM-J8 units

Trigger	Effect	Reset
EEPROM error detected on fan PCB.	Units will stop operating.	Power reset.
Sub code	Unit	Fan PCB
05	VAM350~650J8	A2P
	VAM800+1000J8	АЗР
	VAM1500+2000J8	A3P
15	VAM350~650J8	A2P
	VAM800+1000J8	A2P
	VAM1500+2000J8	A2P
25	VAM1500+2000J8	A5P
35	VAM1500+2000J8	A4P

#### To solve the error code



## INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

DAIKIN

**1** Depending on your unit, check if the correct spare part is installed for the appropriate indoor unit fan PCB (see table above). See Indoor unit fan PCB.

Possible cause: Incorrect spare part PCB.

**2** Check if the correct spare part is installed for the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit main PCB. Check that the correct capacity setting adapter is connected to X23A of the PCB.

**Possible cause:** Incorrect spare part PCB or incorrect capacity setting adapter.



## INFORMATION

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

## 3.2.25 C6-06-16-26-36 – Fan PCB fin thermistor malfunction

## VAM-J8 units

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Fan PCB fin thermistor is open or short-circuit.	Units will stop operating.	Power reset.
Sub code	Unit	Fan PCB
06	VAM350~650J8	A2P
	VAM800+1000J8	АЗР
	VAM1500+2000J8	A3P
16	VAM350~650J8	A2P
	VAM800+1000J8	A2P
	VAM1500+2000J8	A2P
26	VAM1500+2000J8	A5P
36	VAM1500+2000J8	A4P

#### To solve the error code



#### **INFORMATION**

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

**1** Depending on your unit, perform a check of the appropriate indoor unit fan PCB (see table above). See Indoor unit fan PCB.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit fan PCB.



#### INFORMATION

## 3.2.26 C6-07-17-27-37 – Fan PCB fin thermistor abnormality

## VAM-J8 units

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Fan PCB fin thermistor read-out is abnormal.	Units will stop operating.	Power reset.
Sub code	Unit	Fan PCB
07	VAM350~650J8	A2P
	VAM800+1000J8	A3P
	VAM1500+2000J8	A3P
17	VAM350~650J8	A2P
	VAM800+1000J8	A2P
	VAM1500+2000J8	A2P
27	VAM1500+2000J8	A5P
37	VAM1500+2000J8	A4P

## To solve the error code



## INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

**1** Depending on your unit, perform a check of the appropriate indoor unit fan PCB (see table above). See Indoor unit fan PCB.

**Possible cause:** Faulty indoor unit fan PCB.



#### INFORMATION

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

## 3.2.27 C9-00 – Air thermistor abnormality

#### **EKVDX-A units**

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Indoor unit air thermistor read-out is out of range.	Unit will stop operating.	Auto reset.

## To solve the error code

INFORMATION
It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

**1** Perform a check of the indoor unit air thermistor. See Thermistors.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit air thermistor.

2 Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB. **Possible cause:** Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



## INFORMATION

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

## 3.2.28 CA-00 – Discharge thermistor abnormality

## **EKVDX-A units**

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Indoor unit discharge thermistor read-out is out of range.	Unit will stop operating.	Auto reset.

## To solve the error code



## INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

- Perform a check of the indoor unit discharge thermistor. See Thermistors.
   Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit discharge thermistor.
- Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit main PCB.

i

#### INFORMATION

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

## 3.2.29 CH-00 – CO2 sensor alarm

#### VAM-J8 units

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Optional CO <sub>2</sub> sensor is	Unit will continue	Auto reset.
disconnected or	operating. Fan speed is	
short-circuit.	NO more adjusted	
	according to $CO_2$ level.	

#### To solve the error code



#### INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

**1** Perform a check of the optional  $CO_2$  sensor. See CO2 sensor.

**Possible cause:** Faulty CO<sub>2</sub> sensor.

2 Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

**Possible cause:** Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



#### **INFORMATION**

## 3.2.30 CH-01 – R32 leak detection sensor failure or disconnected

## **EKVDX-A units**

Trigger	Effect	Reset
The R32 sensor NOT connected to indoor unit main PCB.	Unit will stop operating.	Set field setting 25-14-01 to 02 on the remote controller of the faulty
R32 sensor PCB failure		indoor unit.

## To solve the error code



#### INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

 Check wiring (insertion and continuity) on connector X41A on the indoor unit main PCB and connector CN1 on the PCB of the R32 leak detection sensor. See "5.2 Wiring diagram" [> 63].

**Possible cause:** Faulty or damaged wiring between indoor unit main PCB and R32 leak detection sensor.

2 Check the error history for error code A0-11, see "3 Troubleshooting" [▶ 19]. If A0-11 is found, R32 leak detection sensor was replaced after this error and power reconnected. Check if field setting 25-14=02. Correct if needed, see "5.8 Field settings" [▶ 83].

**Possible cause:** R32 leak detection sensor was replaced without adjusting field setting 25-14.

**3** Perform a check of the R32 leak detection sensor of the faulty indoor unit. See R32 leak detection sensor.

Possible cause: Faulty R32 leak detection sensor.

**4** Check if any external (foreign) vapor substance influenced the functioning of the R32 leak detection sensor. Repair as needed.

**Possible cause:** External (foreign) vapor substance reacted with R32 leak detection sensor.

**5** Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



#### **INFORMATION**



## 3.2.31 CH-02 – R32 leak detection sensor life time is exceeded

## **EKVDX-A units**

Trigger	Effect	Reset
The R32 sensor detected operation of 10 years or	Indoor unit will stop operating.	<ul> <li>Power reset of the indoor unit.</li> </ul>
more.		<ul> <li>Set field setting 25-14-01 to 02 on the remote controller of the faulty indoor unit.</li> </ul>

#### To solve the error code



## INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

 Check the error history to see if R32 leak detection sensor was replaced, see "3 Troubleshooting" [▶ 19]. If replaced, check if timer was reset during sensor replacement. Reset as needed.

Possible cause: R32 leak detection sensor was replaced without timer reset.

2 Check the operation time of the R32 leak detection sensor of the faulty indoor unit. If operation time is 10 years, replace the R32 leak detection sensor. See R32 leak detection sensor.

**Possible cause:** R32 leak detection sensor operation time reached maximum value (10 years).

**3** Perform a check of the R32 leak detection sensor of the faulty indoor unit. See R32 leak detection sensor.

Possible cause: Faulty R32 leak detection sensor.

**4** Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

**Possible cause:** Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



## INFORMATION

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

3.2.32 CH-05 - R32 leak detection sensor life time <6 months

## **EKVDX-A units**

Trigger	Effect	Reset
The R32 sensor detected operation of 9.5 years or more.	Unit will continue operating.	Auto reset.

## To solve the error code



## INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

1 Check the error history to see if R32 leak detection sensor was replaced, see "3 Troubleshooting" [> 19]. If replaced, check if timer was reset during sensor replacement. Reset as needed.

Possible cause: R32 leak detection sensor was replaced without timer reset.

2 Check the operation time of the R32 leak detection sensor of the faulty indoor unit. If operation time approaches 10 years, order a new R32 leak detection sensor and replace at the next maintenance interval.

Possible cause: R32 leak detection sensor operation time approaches maximum value (10 years).

**3** Perform a check of the R32 leak detection sensor of the faulty indoor unit. See R32 leak detection sensor.

**Possible cause:** Faulty R32 leak detection sensor.

**4** Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



## **INFORMATION**

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

## 3.2.33 CH-10 – R32 leak detection sensor replacement to confirm

## **EKVDX-A units**

Trigger	Effect	Reset
The R32 sensor detected disconnection between indoor unit main PCB and R32 sensor.	Indoor unit will stop operating.	<ul> <li>Set field setting 25-14-01 to 02 on the remote controller of the faulty indoor unit.</li> </ul>
R32 sensor replaced and power reset after error A0-11		

## To solve the error code



## **INFORMATION**

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

1 Check wiring (insertion and continuity) on connector X41A on the indoor unit main PCB and connector CN1 on the PCB of the R32 leak detection sensor. See "5.2 Wiring diagram" [ 63].

**Possible cause:** Faulty or damaged wiring between indoor unit main PCB and R32 leak detection sensor.

2 Check the error history for error code A0-11, see "3 Troubleshooting" [> 19]. If A0-11 is found, R32 leak detection sensor was replaced after this error and power reconnected. Check if field setting 25-14=02. Correct if needed, see "5.8 Field settings" [▶ 83].

Possible cause: R32 leak detection sensor was replaced without adjusting field setting 25-14.

**3** Perform a check of the R32 leak detection sensor of the faulty indoor unit. See R32 leak detection sensor.

DAIKIN

Possible cause: Faulty R32 leak detection sensor.

**4** Check if any external (foreign) vapor substance influenced the functioning of the R32 leak detection sensor. Repair as needed.

Possible cause: External (foreign) vapor substance reacted with R32 leak detection sensor.

5 Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



## **INFORMATION**

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

## 3.2.34 CJ-00 – Remote controller air thermistor abnormality

#### **EKVDX-A units**

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Remote controller air thermistor read-out is out	Indoor unit will continue operating, using indoor	Auto reset.
of range.	unit air thermistor as	
	input.	

## To solve the error code



It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

- Clear the error history of the remote controller. See operation manual of the 1 remote controller for detailed information.
- 2 If error is still active, replace the remote controller. See Remote controller user interface.



#### **INFORMATION**

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

## 3.2.35 U5-04 – Communication abnormality between indoor unit main PCB and remote controller

#### **EKVDX-A and VAM-J8 units**

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Transmission abnormality	Unit will stop operating.	Auto reset.
between indoor unit main		
PCB and remote		
controller.		

## To solve the error code

i	

#### **INFORMATION**

EKVDX-A + VAM-J8 pair can ONLY have 1 remote controller. In this setup sub remote controllers and/or supervisor remote controllers are NOT allowed. Make sure remote controller is set to normal mode. slave mode or supervisor mode is NOT allowed.

VAM-J8 stand-alone installation can have master and slave remote controllers.

EKVDX-A unit CANNOT be installed stand-alone.

	1
-	
_	

## INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

- IN CASE OF VAM-J8 STAND-ALONE
- 1 Check if multiple remote controllers are wired to the same indoor unit. One remote controller needs to be set to main while all other remote controllers need to be set to sub. Also check that the remote controllers are correctly wired. See installer reference guide of the remote controller for detailed information.

**Possible cause:** No main remote controller set when multiple units are wired to the same indoor unit.

**2** Perform a check of the remote controller. See Remote controller user interface.

**Possible cause:** Faulty remote controller or faulty transmission wiring between remote controller and indoor unit.

- **3** If possible, switch the faulty remote controller with a remote controller from another indoor unit.
  - If error transfers to the other indoor unit, replace the remote controller. See Remote controller user interface.

Possible cause: Faulty remote controller.

 If error is still present on the indoor unit, Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit main PCB.

- IN CASE OF EKVDX-A + VAM-J8 COMBINATION
- **1** Perform a check of the remote controller. See Remote controller user interface.

**Possible cause:** Faulty remote controller or faulty transmission wiring between remote controller and indoor unit.

- **2** If possible, switch the faulty remote controller with a remote controller from another indoor unit.
  - If error transfers to the other indoor unit, replace the remote controller. See Remote controller user interface.

Possible cause: Faulty remote controller.

• If error is still present on the indoor unit, Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



#### INFORMATION

3.2.36 U5-06 – Supervisor remote controller not connected/not set

## **EKVDX-A units**

ſ	i	
~		

#### INFORMATION

This error code is NOT generated by the EKVDX-A unit or VAM unit, but by another DX indoor unit in the F1/F2 transmission circuit of the system. The error code is ALSO shown on the remote controller of the EKVDX-A unit.

Supervisor remote controller is NOT possible for EKVDX-A + VAM pair.

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Faulty supervisor remote controller or faulty setting in the system.	Unit will stop operating.	Power reset.

#### To solve the error code

**1** See "Error based troubleshooting" in the outdoor unit service manual and proceed with the troubleshooting of this error code.



#### INFORMATION

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

3.2.37 U8-00 – Transmission error between Master and Slave remote controller

#### VAM-J8 units

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Main PCB detects abnormal/missing signal on remote controller transmission line.	Unit will stop operating.	Power reset.

## To solve the error code



#### INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

1 Check if multiple remote controllers are wired to the same indoor unit. One remote controller needs to be set to main while all other remote controllers need to be set to sub. Also check that the remote controllers are correctly wired. See installer reference guide of the remote controller for detailed information.

**Possible cause:** No main remote controller set when multiple units are wired to the same indoor unit.

**2** Perform a check of the remote controller. See Remote controller user interface.

**Possible cause:** Faulty remote controller or faulty transmission wiring between remote controller and indoor unit.

**3** If possible, switch the faulty remote controller with a remote controller from another indoor unit.

Service manual

• If error transfers to the other indoor unit, replace the remote controller. See Remote controller user interface.

Possible cause: Faulty remote controller.

• If error is still present on the indoor unit, Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

## 3.2.38 U9-01 – Other indoor unit has error

## **EKVDX-A units**

Trigger	Effect	Reset
System mismatch, non-compatible indoor units.	Unit will continue operation.	Auto reset.
At least one other indoor unit on same F1-F2 wiring has an error.		

## To solve the error code

i	<b>INFORMATION</b> It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

- 1 Check the indoor units for error codes other than U9-01. See "3.2 Error based troubleshooting" [▶ 21] to solve the error code(s).
- **2** See "Error based troubleshooting" in the outdoor unit service manual and proceed with the troubleshooting of this error code.



#### INFORMATION

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

## 3.2.39 U9-02 – Other indoor unit has error

## **EKVDX-A units**

Trigger	Effect	Reset
At least one other indoor unit on same F1-F2 wiring has an error.	Unit will stop operating.	Depends on the error type at other indoor unit.

## To solve the error code



#### **INFORMATION**

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.



- 1 Check the indoor units for error codes other than U9-02. See "3.2 Error based troubleshooting" [▶ 21] to solve the error code(s).
- **2** See "Error based troubleshooting" in the outdoor unit service manual and proceed with the troubleshooting of this error code.



## INFORMATION

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

## 3.2.40 UA-00 – Wrong remote controller

## **EKVDX-A and VAM-J8 units**

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Wrong type of remote controller detected.	Unit will stop operating.	Power reset.

#### To solve the error code



#### INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

**1** Check the databook for compatible remote controllers. Connect compatible remote controller.

**Possible cause:** Incompatible remote controller.



#### INFORMATION

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

## 3.2.41 UC-00 – Central address duplication error

## **EKVDX-A and VAM-J8 units**

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Same central address is assigned to multiple indoor units.	Central controller CANNOT communicate.	Auto reset.

## To solve the error code



## INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

**1** Consult remote controller manual and assign dedicated addresses to each indoor unit.

Possible cause: Incorrect address setting.



### INFORMATION



## 3.2.42 UE-00 – Communication abnormality with central controller

## **EKVDX-A and VAM-J8 units**

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Transmission abnormality with central controller.	Unit will stop operating.	Auto reset.

## To solve the error code



#### INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

## If all indoor units display error UE-00

**1** See "Error based troubleshooting" in the outdoor unit service manual and proceed with the troubleshooting of this error code.

## If ONLY 1 indoor unit displays error UE-00

1 Check if the indoor unit has an assigned group address. Set a group address as needed. See installation manual of the remote controller for procedure to set group address.

Possible cause: No group address assigned to indoor unit.

- 2 Perform a power reset on the central controller and check if error is resolved.
- **3** Using the service monitoring tools, check the communication registers.



## INFORMATION

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

## 3.2.43 UJ-34 - Capacity mismatch between VAM and DX module

## **EKVDX-A units**

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Incompatible VAM and EKVDX capacities are installed together.	Unit will NOT operate.	Power reset.

## To solve the error code



It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

- 1 Check for improper combination of units. See the combination table in the Databook for more information. Change the installation with ONLY compatible type units.
- **2** Check if the correct spare part is installed for the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit main PCB. Check that the correct capacity setting adapter is connected to X23A of the PCB.

**Possible cause:** Incorrect spare part PCB or incorrect capacity setting adapter.



#### **INFORMATION**

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

## 3.2.44 UJ-35 - Abnormality at VAM unit

## **EKVDX-A units**

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Malfunction detected at VAM unit.	Unit will stop operating.	Power reset.

#### To solve the error code

1 Check the error code at the VAM-J8 indoor unit. See "3.2 Error based troubleshooting" [▶ 21] to solve the error code.



#### INFORMATION

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

## 3.2.45 UJ-36 - Transmission error between VAM and EKVDX

## **EKVDX-A units**

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Error detected in transmission between the units.	Unit will stop operating.	Power reset.

#### To solve the error code



#### INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

 Check the transmission wiring between the VAM unit and the DX unit. See "5.2 Wiring diagram" [▶ 63].

Possible cause: Faulty transmission wiring.

2 Check the field settings for VAM unit and DX unit pair application. Make sure to perform the correct settings. See "5.8 Field settings" [▶ 83].

Possible cause: Incorrect field setting.



## INFORMATION

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

## 3.2.46 UJ-37 - VAM unit has A6-28 error

## **EKVDX-A units**

Trigger	Effect	Reset	
VAM unit has A6-28 error.	Unit will stop operating.	Power reset.	



## To solve the error code

1 Check the VAM-J8 indoor unit for error code A6-28. See "3.2 Error based troubleshooting" [▶ 21] to solve the error code.



#### **INFORMATION**

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

## 3.2.47 UJ-38 – VAM unit has A6-29 error

#### **EKVDX-A units**

Trigger	Effect	Reset
VAM unit has A6-29 error.	Unit will stop operating.	Power reset.

#### To solve the error code

1 Check the VAM-J8 indoor unit for error code A6-29. See "3.2 Error based troubleshooting" [▶ 21] to solve the error code.



#### INFORMATION

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

## 3.2.48 60-00 – External protection device activated

#### VAM-J8 units

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Input signal JC-J1 on terminal X2M is closed	Unit will continue	Auto reset.
and field setting 28-8=2 or 28-8=3.		

#### To solve the error code



1 If wiring connected to JC-J1 of X2M terminal of the indoor unit, check correct connection and continuity of the wiring. See "5.2 Wiring diagram" [▶ 63].

**Possible cause:** Faulty or damaged wiring between JC-J1 of X2M terminal of the indoor unit and external device.

2 Check if the field setting 28-8 is correctly set according to the installation. See "5.8 Field settings" [▶ 83]. Correct as needed.

**Possible cause:** Incorrect field setting.

**3** Perform a power reset. If the error disappears and is raised again after a while, check for the presence of an external source causing electrical noise. See External factors.

Possible cause: External source may cause interference.

4 Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

#### Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit main PCB.

i	)

#### **INFORMATION**

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

## 3.2.49 64-01 – Indoor air thermistor malfunction

#### VAM-J8 units

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Indoor air thermistor open or short-circuit.	Unit will continue operating.	Auto reset.

#### To solve the error code

_		_	
ſ	•	1	
ι.		- 11	
ι.		- 11	

#### INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

**1** Perform a check of the indoor air thermistor. See Thermistors.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor air thermistor.

**2** Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

**Possible cause:** Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



## INFORMATION

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

## 3.2.50 64-02 – Indoor air thermistor out of range

## VAM-J8 units

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Indoor air thermistor	Unit will continue	Auto reset.

#### To solve the error code



#### INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

**1** Perform a check of the indoor air thermistor. See Thermistors.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor air thermistor.

**2** Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

**Possible cause:** Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



#### INFORMATION

3.2.51 65-01 – Outdoor air thermistor malfunction

## VAM-J8 units

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Outdoor air thermistor	Unit will continue	Auto reset.
open or short-circuit.	operating.	

## To solve the error code



#### INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

1 Perform a check of the outdoor air thermistor. See Thermistors.

Possible cause: Faulty outdoor air thermistor.

2 Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

**Possible cause:** Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



## INFORMATION

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

## 3.2.52 65-02 – Outdoor air thermistor out of range

## VAM-J8 units

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Outdoor air thermistor read-out is out of range.	Unit will continue operating.	Auto reset.

## To solve the error code



#### INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

**1** Perform a check of the outdoor air thermistor. See Thermistors.

**Possible cause:** Faulty outdoor air thermistor.

2 Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



## **INFORMATION**



## 3.2.53 65-03 – Low outdoor air temperature

## VAM-J8 units

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Low outdoor ambient temperature detected during filter contamination inspection function.	Unit will stop operating.	Auto reset.

#### To solve the error code

INFORMATION
It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.

 Check that the field setting 29-0 is NOT set as 29-0=4 or 29-0=5. See "5.8 Field settings" [▶ 83].

**Possible cause:** Faulty field setting (filter contamination inspection function NOT available at low ambient temperature).

2 Perform a check of the outdoor air thermistor. See Thermistors.

**Possible cause:** Faulty outdoor air thermistor.

**3** Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



## INFORMATION

If all procedures listed above have been performed and the problem is still present, contact the helpdesk.

## 3.2.54 6A-00 – Damper related malfunction

## VAM-J8 units

Trigger	Effect	Reset
Limit switch of the damper motor did NOT detect damper movement after motor was energized.	Unit will continue operating.	Power reset.

#### To solve the error code



#### INFORMATION

It is recommended to perform the checks in the listed order.



#### **INFORMATION**

VAM1500+2000J8 units have 2 damper motors and limit switches. Make sure to check both damper motors and limit switches.

1 Perform a check of the limit switch. See Limit switch.

Possible cause: Faulty limit switch.



2 Perform a check of the damper motor. See Damper motor.

Possible cause: Faulty damper motor.

**3** Perform a power reset. If the error disappears and is raised again after a while, check for the presence of an external source causing electrical noise. See External factors.

**Possible cause:** External source may cause interference.

4 Perform a check of the indoor unit main PCB. See Indoor unit PCB.

Possible cause: Faulty indoor unit main PCB.



#### INFORMATION



# 4 Maintenance



## NOTICE

General maintenance/inspection checklist. Next to the maintenance instructions in this chapter, a general maintenance/inspection checklist is also available on the Daikin Business Portal (authentication required).

The general maintenance/inspection checklist is complementary to the instructions in this chapter and can be used as a guideline and reporting template during maintenance.

## 4.1 Maintenance for heat reclaim ventilation units



## CAUTION

See "User safety instructions" in the installer reference guide to aknowledge all related safety instructions.



## NOTICE

Maintenance MUST be done by an authorised installer or service agent.

We recommend performing maintenance at least once a year. However, applicable legislation might require shorter maintenance intervals.



## NOTICE

We recommend to clean at least once every 2 years (for general office use). If necessary, shorter maintenance intervals might be required.

## NOTICE

Applicable legislation on fluorinated greenhouse gases requires that the refrigerant charge of the unit is indicated both in weight and CO<sub>2</sub> equivalent.

Formula to calculate the quantity in CO2 equivalent tonnes: GWP value of the refrigerant × total refrigerant charge [in kg] / 1000

4.1.1 Maintenance safety precautions





## 4.1.2 Checklist for maintenance of the heat reclaim ventilation unit



## 4.1.3 Maintenance of the air filter



## To clean the air filters

**1** Go into the ceiling through the inspection hole, loosen the screw of the hinge mechanism (on the left side) to open the service cover. Take the service cover off by rotating it around the vertical axis of the hanging metal.



- **b** Hinge mechanism
- c Hanging metal
- A Models 350~1000
- **B** Models 1500+2000
- **2** Take out the air filters from the unit body.





- a Heat exchange element
- **b** Handle
- c Raild Air filter
- A Models 350~1000
- B Models 1500+2000
- **3** To clean the air filter, lightly pat it with your hand or remove dust with a vacuum cleaner. If excessively dirty, wash it in water.



- **4** If the air filter is washed, remove water completely and allow to dry for 20 to 30 minutes in the shade.
- **5** When dried completely, install the air filter back in place after the installation of the heat exchange element. Make sure the air filter is orientated correctly, as shown in the figure.



**6** Install the service cover securely in place.

4.1.4 Maintenance of the heat exchange element



## NOTICE

- NEVER wash the heat exchange element with water.
- NEVER touch the heat exchange element paper because it can be damaged if it is forced.
- Do NOT crush the heat exchange element.

## To clean the heat exchange element

- Take out the heat exchange elements. Refer to "4.1.3 Maintenance of the air filter" [▶ 58].
- 2 Equip a vacuum cleaner with a brush on the end of the suction nozzle.
- **3** Use the vacuum cleaner and lightly apply the brush to the surface of the heat exchange element to remove dust.



- 4 Place the heat exchange element on the rail and insert it in the unit.
- **5** Install the air filters in the unit.
- 6 Install the service cover.

## 4.2 Maintenance for DX units



4.2.1 Checklist for yearly maintenance of the indoor unit

Check the following at least once a year:





- Heat exchanger
- Drain pan

## Instructions

The heat exchanger and drain pan of the indoor unit can get contaminated and blocked up. It is recommended to clean the heat exchanger and drain pan yearly. A blocked heat exchanger can lead to too low pressure or too high pressure leading to worse performance.

When cleaning the indoor unit heat exchanger and drain pan make sure to:

- Use proper field supply cleaning agent which is suitable for cleaning heat exchangers and drain pans.
- Clearly follow the instructions of local supply cleaning agent and to NOT use household cleaning agents.
- Rinse the heat exchanger and drain pan with water after the cleaning process.



## CAUTION

Rinse out the cleaning agent until there is NO cleaning agent left. Otherwise, the corrosion of heat exchanger and drain pan may occur. Pay attention to the cleaning agent that may also corrode other materials of the indoor unit (Aluminium, copper, plastic, ABS, ...).

## 4.2.2 Cleaning the air outlet



## CAUTION

Turn off the unit before cleaning the air outlet.

## To clean the air outlet



#### WARNING

Do NOT let the indoor unit get wet. **Possible consequence:** Electrical shock or fire.

Clean with a soft cloth. If it is difficult to remove stains, use water or a neutral detergent.

## 4.2.3 Maintenance before a long stop period

E.g., at the end of the season.

- Let the indoor units run in fan only operation for about half a day in order to dry the interior of the units.
- Clean casings of indoor units (see "4.2.2 Cleaning the air outlet" [> 61]).
- Remove the batteries from the user interface (if applicable).

## 4.2.4 Maintenance after a long stop period

- E.g., at the beginning of the season.
- Check and remove everything that might be blocking inlet and outlet vents of indoor units and outdoor units.
- Clean casings of indoor units (see "4.2.2 Cleaning the air outlet" [▶ 61]).
- Insert batteries in the user interface (if applicable).

# 5 Technical data

## 5.1 Detailed information setting mode

5.1.1 Detailed information setting mode: Indoor unit

See the installer reference guide on business portal for more information.

5.1.2 Detailed information setting mode: Remote controller

See the installer reference guide on business portal for more information.



## 5.2 Wiring diagram

## 5.2.1 Wiring diagram: VAM-J8

The wiring diagram can be found on the outside of the service cover.

## Legend for wiring diagrams:

A1P	Printed circuit board
A2P	Printed circuit board assy (fan) (VAM350~650)
A2P-A3P	Printed circuit board assy (fan) (VAM800+1000)
A2P~A5P	Printed circuit board assy (fan) (VAM1500+2000)
C7	Capacitor (M1F)
F1U (A1P)	Fuse (250 V, 6.3 A, T)
F2U (A2P)	Fuse (250 V, 5 A, T) (VAM350~650)
F3U	Fuse (250 V, 6.3 A, T) (VAM800~2000)
F4U (A2P)	Fuse (250 V, 6.3 A, T) (VAM350~650)
НАР	Pilot lamp (service monitor - green)
K*R	Magnetic relay
L*R	Reactor
M1D	Motor (damper)
M2D	Motor (damper) (VAM1500+2000)
M1F	Supply air fan
M2F	Exhaust air fan
M3F	Motor (exhaust air fan) (top) (VAM1500+2000)
M4F	Motor (supply air fan) (top) (VAM1500+2000)
PS	Switching power supply
Q1DI	Field earth leak detector (≤300 mA)
R*	Resistance
R1T	Thermistor (indoor air)
R2T	Thermistor (outdoor air)
R3T	Thermistor (PTC)
S1C	Limit switch damper motor
S2C	Limit switch damper motor (VAM1500+2000)
V1R	Diode bridge
X1M (A1P)	Terminal
X2M (A1P)	Terminal (outside input)
X3M	Terminal (power supply)
Z1F	Noise filter
Z*C	Noise filter (ferrite core)

## **Remote controller**

SS1

|--|

## **Connector for option**

X14A	Connector (CO <sub>2</sub> sensor)
X24A	Connector (outside damper)
X33A	Connector (contact printed circuit board)
X35A	Connector (power supply printed circuit board)

## Symbols:

	Field wiring
	Terminals
○ ○ , <del>- •</del> ) <u>-</u> - <u>-</u> ) <u>-</u>	Connectors
	Protective earth
Ē	Noiseless earth

## **Colours:**

BLK	Black
BLU	Blue
BRN	Brown
GRN	Green
ORG	Orange
RED	Red
WHT	White
YLW	Yellow

## Translation of text on wiring diagram

English	Translation
Notes	Notes
X35A is connected when optional accessories are being used, see wiring diagram of this accessory	X35A is connected when optional accessories are being used, see wiring diagram of this accessory
An EKVDX unit and its corresponding VAM-J8 unit should be connected to a common power supply. Refer to the installation manual of the EKVDX unit for further details.	An EKVDX unit and its corresponding VAM-J8 unit should be connected to a common power supply. Refer to the installation manual of the EKVDX unit for further details.
Transmission wiring	Transmission wiring
Ext. output - error state	External output - error state
Ext. output - R32 alarm	External output – R32 alarm
Caution when performing service inside the el. compo. box	Caution when performing service inside the electrical component box.





## 5 Technical data

English	Translation
Caution for ELECTRIC SHOCK	Caution for ELECTRIC SHOCK
Do not open the el. compo. box cover for 10 minutes after the power supply is turned off.	Do not open the electrical component box cover for 10 minutes after the power supply is turned off.
After opening the el. compo. box, measure (on A1P~A5P) the points shown at the right with a tester and confirm that the voltage of the capacitor in the main circuit is less than DC50V.	After opening the electrical component box, measure (on A1P~A5P) the points shown at the right with a tester and confirm that the voltage of the capacitor in the main circuit is less than DC50V.
Measuring points for voltage	Measuring points for voltage
Printed circuit board	Printed circuit board

## Wiring diagram VAM350~650J8



#### INFORMATION





## Wiring diagram VAM800+1000J8



#### INFORMATION





## Wiring diagram VAM1500+2000J8



#### **INFORMATION**





## 5.2.2 Wiring diagram: EKVDX

See the internal wiring diagram supplied with the unit (on the inside of the indoor unit switch box cover). The abbreviations used are listed below.

## **Unified legend**

For applied parts and numbering, refer to the wiring diagram on the unit. Part numbering is by Arabic numbers in ascending order for each part and is represented in the overview below by "\*" in the part code.

Symbol	Meaning	Symbol	Meaning	
	Circuit breaker	Ð	Protective earth	
-Þ				
×	-			
-•-	Connection	Protective		earth (screw)
∞-∞- ∞,)-	Connector	A	A Rectifier	
÷	Earth	-(=-	Relay connector	
	Field wiring		Short-circuit connector	
	Fuse	-0-		
INDOOR	Indoor unit		Terminal strip	
OUTDOOR	Outdoor unit	○ ●	Wire clamp	
	Residual current device			
Symbol	Colour	Symbol		Colour
BLK	Black	ORG		Orange
BLU	Blue	PNK		Pink
BRN	Brown	PRP, PPL		Purple
GRN	Green	RED		Red
GRY	Grey	WHT		White
		YLW		Yellow
Symbol		Meaning		
A*P	A*P		Printed circuit board	
BS*		Pushbutton ON/OFF, operation sw		operation switch
BZ, H*O		Buzzer		
C*		Capacitor		
AC*, CN*, E HR*, MR*_ X*A, K*R_*	E*, HA*, HE*, HL*, HN*, A, MR*_B, S*, U, V, W, , NE	Connectio	n, connecto	pr
D*, V*D		Diode	Diode	
DB*		Diode bridge		
DS*		DIP switch	DIP switch	



Symbol	Meaning	
E*H	Heater	
FU*, F*U, (for characteristics, refer to PCB inside your unit)	Fuse	
FG*	Connector (frame ground)	
H*	Harness	
H*P, LED*, V*L	Pilot lamp, light emitting diode	
НАР	Light emitting diode (service monitor green)	
HIGH VOLTAGE	High voltage	
IES	Intelligent eye sensor	
IPM*	Intelligent power module	
K*R, KCR, KFR, KHuR, K*M	Magnetic relay	
L	Live	
L*	Coil	
L*R	Reactor	
M*	Stepper motor	
M*C	Compressor motor	
M*F	Fan motor	
M*P	Drain pump motor	
M*S	Swing motor	
MR*, MRCW*, MRM*, MRN*	Magnetic relay	
N	Neutral	
n=*, N=*	Number of passes through ferrite core	
PAM	Pulse-amplitude modulation	
PCB*	Printed circuit board	
PM*	Power module	
PS	Switching power supply	
PTC*	PTC thermistor	
Q*	Insulated gate bipolar transistor (IGBT)	
Q*C	Circuit breaker	
Q*DI, KLM	Earth leak circuit breaker	
Q*L	Overload protector	
Q*M	Thermo switch	
Q*R	Residual current device	
R*	Resistor	
R*T	Thermistor	
RC	Receiver	
S*C	Limit switch	



Symbol	Meaning
S*L	Float switch
S*NG	Refrigerant leak detector
S*NPH	Pressure sensor (high)
S*NPL	Pressure sensor (low)
S*PH, HPS*	Pressure switch (high)
S*PL	Pressure switch (low)
S*T	Thermostat
S*RH	Humidity sensor
S*W, SW*	Operation switch
SA*, F1S	Surge arrester
SR*, WLU	Signal receiver
SS*	Selector switch
SHEET METAL	Terminal strip fixed plate
T*R	Transformer
TC, TRC	Transmitter
V*, R*V	Varistor
V*R	Diode bridge, Insulated-gate bipolar transistor (IGBT) power module
WRC	Wireless remote controller
Χ*	Terminal
X*M	Terminal strip (block)
Y*E	Electronic expansion valve coil
Y*R, Y*S	Reversing solenoid valve coil
Z*C	Ferrite core
ZF, Z*F	Noise filter

## Translation of text on wiring diagram

English	Translation
Notes	Notes
X35A is connected when optional accessories are being used, see wiring diagram of this accessory	X35A is connected when optional accessories are being used, see wiring diagram of this accessory
An EKVDX unit and its corresponding VAM-J8 unit should be connected to a common power supply. Refer to the installation manual of the EKVDX unit for further details.	An EKVDX unit and its corresponding VAM-J8 unit should be connected to a common power supply. Refer to the installation manual of the EKVDX unit for further details.
Transmission wiring	Transmission wiring
Ext. output - error state	External output - error state
Ext. output - R32 alarm	External output – R32 alarm



English	Translation
Gas sensor circuit	Gas sensor circuit
Wired remote controller	Wired remote controller
Control box layout	Control box layout

## Wiring diagram



## INFORMATION





- 5.3 Piping diagram
- 5.3.1 Piping diagram: Indoor unit

**EKVDX** 



## **INFORMATION**

The diagrams shown in this manual may be incorrect due to changes/updates to the unit. Correct diagrams are supplied with the unit and can also be found in the technical data book.



- b
- **c** Filter d Distributor
- е Heat exchanger
- R1T Air thermistor
- R2T Refrigerant liquid thermistor
- R3T Gas thermistor
- R5T Discharge air thermistor
- Y1E Electronic expansion valve
- Heating
- Cooling

Service manual 72 draft – 07/02/2022 15:12


# 5.4 Component overview

#### 5.4.1 Component overview: DX unit



Discharge air thermistor R5T 0

**h** Float switch S1L



5.4.2 Component overview: Heat reclaim ventilation unit





- **a** Air inlet
- **b** Exhaust air fan M2F
- c Exhaust air
- d Bypass damper
- e Air return
- f Supply air fan M1F
- g Air supply

- **h** Switch box
- i Air filter
- j Crossflow paper heat exchanger
- **k** Damper motor M1D
- Limit switch S1C
- **m** Indoor air thermistor R1T
- **n** Outdoor air thermistor R2T







- **a** Air inlet
- Exhaust air fan M1F b
- **c** Exhaust air
- **d** Bypass damper
- e Air return
- f Supply air fan M2F
- **g** Air supply

- **h** Switch box
- i Air filter
- Crossflow paper heat exchanger j
- k Damper motor M1D Limit switch S1C k
- **m** Indoor air thermistor R1T
- Outdoor air thermistor R2T n





- a Air inlet (top)
- **b** Exhaust air fan (top) M3F
- c Exhaust air (top)
- **d** Bypass damper (top)
- e Air return (top)
- f Air return (bottom)
- **g** Air supply (top)
- **h** Air supply (bottom)
- i Switch box
- **j** Air filter
- k Crossflow paper heat exchanger
- I Supply air fan (top) M4F

- **m** Air inlet (bottom)
- n Exhaust air (bottom)
- Damper motor (bottom) M1D
- **p** Limit switch (bottom) S1C
- q Bypass damper (bottom)r Damper motor (top) M2D
- **s** Limit switch (top) S2C
- **t** Supply air fan (bottom) M2F
- **u** Exhaust air fan (bottom) M1F
- v Outdoor air thermistor R2T
- w Indoor air thermistor R1T



# 5.5 Switchbox overview



- a Main PCB A1P
- **b** R32 leak sensor PCB A3P
- ${\color{black} c} \quad {\rm Transmission \ wiring \ terminal \ X1M}$
- **d** Power supply wiring terminal X2M
- e External output PCB A2P





- g Reactor L1R
- h Reactor L2R
- i Fan PCB A3P
- j Power supply wiring terminal X3M



# 5.6 Field information report

See next page.



In case a problem occurred on the unit which could not be resolved by using the content of this service manual or in case you have a problem which could be resolved but of which the manufacturer should be notified, we advise you to contact your distributor.

To facilitate the investigation, additional information is required. Please fill out the following form before contacting your distributor.

FIELD INFORM	ATION REPORT
Key person information	
Name:	Company name:
Your contact details	
Phone number:	E-mail address:
Site address:	
Your reference:	Date of visit:
Claim information	
Title:	
Problem description:	
Error code:	Trouble date:
Problem frequency:	
Investigation steps done:	
Insert picture of the trouble.	
Current situation (solved, not solved,):	
Countermeasures taken:	
Comments and proposals:	
Part available for return (if applicable):	

draft - 07/02/2022 15:12

#### Application information

Application (house, apartment, office,...):

New project or reimbursement:

Piping layout / Wiring layout (simple schematic):

#### Unit / Installation information

Provide pictures of the field settings overview (viewable on the user interface).

# 5.7 Service tools

- **1** For an overview of the available service tools, check the Daikin Business Portal (authentication required).
- **2** Go to the tab After-sales support on the left navigation pane and select Technical support.



**3** Click the button Service tools. An overview of the available service tools for the different products is shown. Also additional information on the service tools (instruction, latest software) can be found here.



# 5.8 Field settings

#### 5.8.1 To retrieve the field settings

#### Via the indoor unit remote controller BRC1H

#### **BRC1H remote controller**

See the installer and user reference guide of the Madoka wired remote controller for correct procedure.

#### Madoka Assistant for BRC1H

i	

#### INFORMATION

Images are in English and for reference ONLY. For more details on the Madoka Assistant please refer to the BRC1H training course material which is available on the Daikin Business Portal.

#### To set as installer mode

In order to retrieve the field settings, the Madoka Assistant app has to be set as installer mode. If already set as, skip to "To retrieve field settings".

#	Action	Image	Result
1	Tap the menu icon.	Table A sistant         Image: Constraint of the sistant	The menu screen is diaplyed.
2	Tap About in the menu screen.	1723 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	The About menu screen is displayed.



# 5 | Technical data

#	Action	Image	Result
3	Tap Application version 5 times.	Terms of Use       Terms of Use       Data protection       Open Source Licenses       Application version       1.6.2	Installer mode screen is displayed.
4	Select (tap) the length of time the Madoka Assistant app is set as installer mode: • Temporary for 30 minutes • Indefinite for unlimited time	17.332 ØØ Ø ♥ ■     Ref ♥ # Ø Ø Ø Ø Ø Ø Ø       Installer mode     Entitels teasliter mode to get a socies to settinge that are not available for regular end users       Installer mode     ●       Temporary     tedefield       Installer mode indicator     ●       Set whether installer mode is enabled temporarily condentions.     Get Ø Ø Ø Ø Ø Ø Ø Ø Ø Ø Ø Ø Ø Ø Ø Ø Ø Ø Ø	The Madoka Assistant app is set as installer mode.

#### To retrieve field settings

#	Action	Image	Result
1	Tap the settings icon.	1722 0 0     M KI Stark 60% #       ←     Office 1     ∰     ∅       ○     1 24°C     1 3     1	The Unit settings screen is displayed.
		Ranged	
		III O <	



#	Action	Image	Result
2	Tap Field settings.	1224 O O I V     VI Red loba          ←       Unit settings        Function look     Disabled >       Maintenance	The Field settings screen is displayed.
3	<ul><li>Tap and select the type for which you want to set the field settings:</li><li>Indoor unit</li><li>Remote controller</li></ul>	1600 ●       If Source 40% at a term         ✓       Field settings       I         Indoor unit       I         Remote controller       I         Indoor unit       I	Field settings can now be set for the selected type.
4	Tap and select the desired Mode No. from the drop down list.	Trade 0 0 0 0     If the set doct is       Image: Control     Image: Control       To load a control     the field settings       To press settings to select/deselect them.     the field settings       Mode     To Unit     0 ~       SELECT ALL     0 ~     0 ~       1 2 2 3 1     0 ~     1       12 13 14 15     15       12 13 14 15     15       12 13 14 15     15       13 14 15     15       14 15 10     15       15     16       16     16       17     16       18     16       19     16	The field setting mode is now selected.



# 5 | Technical data

#	Action	Image	Result
5	In the case of setting per indoor unit during group control (When Mode No. such as 20, 21, 22, 23, 25 are selected), tap and select the Indoor unit No. which is required to set. In the case of group total setting, this operation is NOT needed.	Itel et	<ul> <li>In the case of individual setting per indoor unit, current settings are displayed.</li> <li>In the case of group total setting, all of Second Code No. which may be set are displayed as "*".</li> <li>Second Code No. "-" means no function.</li> </ul>
6	Tap the Second Code No. of the First Code No. to be changed. Select the desired Second Code No. Multiple identical mode number settings are available.	Total 0 0 0 0       B th the state         Image       Field settings         Total a constraint, on to he field settings       Total action on the field settings         Total a constraint, on to he field settings       Total action on the field settings         Total action of the other constraint, and select 'Load       Total action on the other constraint, and select 'Load         Total action of the other constraint, and select 'Load       Total action on the other constraint, and select 'Load         Type       Indoor unit •         Mode       20 °       Unit       0 °         SetECT ALL       0       1       0       0         1       1       0       1       1       1         12       13       14       15       1 <td>Field settings are now set as desired, but still need to be saved.</td>	Field settings are now set as desired, but still need to be saved.



#### INFORMATION

In case of multiple settings, repeat previous steps to change the settings.

#### To save field settings

#	Action	Image Result
1	Tap Done.	1705 C       Control         X       Field settings         Make indoor runt and/or remote controller field       Entrol         Ministry remote controller, such achoose to save a configuration.       The screeen to apply the field settings is displayed.         When you have to make the same settings for make the same setting for make setting for make the same setting for make the
		Type Indoor unit ~
		Mode 10 V Unit Group mode
		$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$



#	Action	Image	Result
2	Tap Apply to remote controller.	17/1 2     ■ ● → 83 € 8       ×     Feld settings     ONE       Addition     Addition     Addition     Addition	Changes are applied to the field settings.
3	Tap Apply.	1712     Ext 254.2       Feld setting     ONE       An observation and dra remove consoler field     ONE       An observation and dra re	Changes to the field settings are confirmed.
4	Tap Return to field settings.	17:12 D C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	Field settings are saved.



5.8.2	Overview of field settings for DX units
	5.8.2

# EKVDX field settings (user interface: indoor unit 0)

Mode	SW	SW description						SW position <sup>(a)</sup>									
			01	02	03	04	05	90	07	80	60	10	11	12	13	14	15
10 (20) <sup>(b)</sup>	13	Discharge temperature correction factor (°C)	0	0.5	1	1.5	2	2.5	e	3.5	4	4.5	2	5.5	9	6.5	7
12(22) <sup>(c)</sup>	1	External input switching (T1 T2 )	Forced stop (default)	External Input (ON:OFF operation)	Protective device input	Forced stop B (multi- tenant setting)	I	1	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I
14 (24) <sup>(d)</sup>	10	Cooling blowout temperature setpoint	13°C	15°C	16°C	17°C	18°C	19°C	20°C	21°C	22°C	23°C	24°C	25°C	26°C	28°C	30°C
14 (24) <sup>(d)</sup>	11	Heating blowout temperature setpoint	24°C	26°C	27°C	28°C	29°C	30°C	31°C	32°C	33°C	35°C	37°C	39°C	41°C	43°C	45°C
15 (25)	8	Drain pump output when cooling thermo OFF	Drain pump OFF	Drain pump ON	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I
	13	R32 safety system <sup>(e)</sup>	OFF	NO	OFF for 24 hours	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I
	14	Sensor replacement completion setting	Normal	Reset	I	1	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I
	15	External contact output settings $^{\left( i\right) }$	Disable	Enable	I	1	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I
	L		_	_													

Factory settings are marked with a grey background.

This field setting cannot be modified via the remote controller menu. q

<sup>[d]</sup> In case of R32 refrigerant, terminal connections T1 T2 are for fire alarm input ONLY. (p)

The VAM field setting 18(28)-13/-14 (see table below) MUST be identical to the EKVDX field setting. Set the EKVDX first (EKVDX=primary, VAM=secondary)

In case R410A is used, set to 15(25)-13-1. 15(25)-15-2 is required when R32 refrigerant is used. (e)

£

# VAM field settings (user interface: indoor unit 1)

Mode	SW	SW description						SW position						_			-
			01	02	03	04	05	90	07	08		60	09 10	09 10 11	09 10 11 12	09 10 11 12 13	09 10 11 12 13 14
17(27)	4	Initial fan speed <sup>ia)</sup>	High	Ultra-high	I	I	Ι	I	I	Ι							
	5 <sup>(b)</sup>	Yes/No setting for duct connection with VRV system	Without duct	With duct	Witho	ut duct	Wit	h duct	Without	duct		With duct	With – duct	With – – – –	With – – – –	With	With duct
		Setting for cold areas when heater thermostat is $OFF^{(c)}$	I	I	Stop/Stop	row/row	Stop/stop	row/row	I	I		I		1	   	     	
		Fan operation when defrost/oil return/hot start <sup>(c)</sup>	I	1	Stop/Stop	Stop/Stop	Stop/Stop	Stop/Stop	Stop/—	Stop/Stop	5	—/do:	/do			/do	/do
	9	Nighttime free cooling (fan settings) <sup>(d)</sup>	High	Ultra-high	I	I	I	I	I	I		1					
18(28)	0	External signal <sup>(n)</sup> JC/J2	Last command	Priority on external input	Priority on operation	Disable nighttime free cooling / Perform forced stop	Ι	24 hours ventilation ON/OFF	Disable JC/J2	I		i	1				
	1	Direct power ON <sup>(I)</sup>	OFF	NO	I	I	I	I	I	I	I						
	2	Auto restart <sup>in</sup>	OFF	NO	I	I	Η	I	Ι	I	Ι		1				
	~	External input terminal function selection <sup>(a)</sup> (JC/J1)	Fresh-up	Error output	Error output and stop operation	Forced off	Fan forced off	Air-flow up	I	I	I		I		1	1	     
	10	EKVDX connected? <sup>(h)</sup>	No	Yes	I	I	I	I	I	I	I		I		1	1	
	13	Cooling set point (with EKVDX)	13°C	15°C	16°C	17°C	18°C	19°C	20°C	21°C	22°C		23°C	23°C 24°C	23°C 24°C 25°C	23°C 24°C 25°C 26°C	23°C 24°C 25°C 26°C 28°C
	14	Heating set point (with EKVDX)	24°C	26°C	27°C	28°C	29°C	30°C	31°C	32°C	33°C		35°C	35°C 37°C	35°C 37°C 39°C	35°C 37°C 39°C 41°C	35°C 37°C 39°C 41°C 43°C
19(29)	15	R32 safety system $^{(i)}$	OFF	NO	I	I	I	I	I	I	I		I				
2	4/V	sen connected to an EKVDX set to	Dr. A														

When connected to an EKVDX, 17(27)-5 can be set to 1, 3, 4, 7 or 8. a

(Supply air/Exhaust air), e.g. Low/Low means: Supply air low/Exhaust air low.  $\odot$ 

In case VAM and EKVDX are combined and the R32 safety system of the VAM is active, the nighttime free cooling is disabled. þ

When connected to an EKVDX, JC/J2 cannot be used. Set to 18(28)-0-7. Instead, use T1 T2 of the EKVDX. See the EKVDX Installation and operation manual. (e)

When connected to an EKVDX, do not change the default settings. £

When connected to an EKVDX, JC/J1 cannot be used. Instead, use T1 T2 of the EKVDX. See the EKVDX Installation and operation manual

When connected to an EKVDX, set to 18(28)-10-2.

When connected to an EKVDX, setting 2 (safety ON) is required in case R32 refrigerant is used. Setting 1 (safety OFF) is required in case R410A refrigerant is used.  $\cong$ 

(g) Ē

units
ventilation
reclaim
or heat
settings fo
/ of field s
Overview
5.8.3

	15	I	I	I	I	1		I	I	I	I	I	I		1	I	I	1	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	1	30°C	>>>>
	14	I					1								1							1	1	1			28°C	>>>
	13	Ι	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	30°C	I	I		I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	76°C	202
	12	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	29°C	I	I		I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	JE°C	577
	11	I	I	I	I	I	ı	ı	I	I	28°C	I	I		I	ı	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	ı	34.0	ר ±ז ר
	10	I	I	1	I	I	1	ı	1	I	27°C	1	1		1	1	I	1	I	1	I	I	I	I	I	1	23°C	2 2 2
	60	I	I	I	I	I	With duct	1	Stop/-	I	26°C	I	I		I	I	I	1	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	22°C	7 77
	08	I	I	I	I	I	duct	1	Stop/Stop	I	25°C	I	I		1	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	21°C	0 T 7
	07	I	I	1	I	I	Without o	I	Stop/—	I	24°C	I	I		Disable JC/J2	I	I	I	I	1	I	I	gh/Ultra-high)	I	I	I	20.00	50 C
SW position <sup>(a)</sup>	90	I	1	1	I	I	duct	Low/Low	Stop/Stop	I	23 °C	I	I		24 hours ventilation ON/OFF	1	I	I	I	1	I	Air-flow up	Fan output (Low/H	I	1	1	10.0	Ta C
	05	I	ON after 8 hours	1	1	I	With c	Stop/stop	Stop/Stop	1	22°C	I	I		I	1	1		1	1		Fan forced off	Fan output (Ultra- high)		1	1	1000	7 9T
	04	I	ON after 6 hours	1	1	1	ut duct	Low/Low	Stop/Stop	1	21°C	1	06	minutes	Disable nighttime free cooling/Perform forced stop	1	1	Damper output (fan operation)	1	Fixed B	Exhaust – indication	Forced off	Fan output (High/Ultra- high)	i output	1	1	J-10 C	T/ ۲
	03		ON after 4 hours	1	60 minutes	1	Witho	Stop/Stop	Stop/Stop	1	20°C	1	60	minutes	Priority on operation	I	1	Damper output (fan operation)	1	Fixed A	Supply – indication	Error output and stop operation	Fan output (Low/ High/∪ltra-high)	Operation	1	Force filter check	1 0.00	To C
	02	±1250 hours	ON after 2 hours	NO	45 minutes	Ultra-high	With duct	1	I	Ultra-high	19°C	Yes	30	minutes	Priority on external input	NO	NO	I	OFF	1	Exhaust – no indication	Error output	Error output		Yes	Reset filter check	C C L T	J- CT
	01	±2500 hours	OFF	OFF	30 minutes	High	Without duct	I	1	High	18°C	No	0	minutes	Last command	OFF	OFF		NO	Linear	Supply – no indication	Fresh-up	Heater output	Operation output	No	No action	000	13-L
SW description		Filter cleaning time	Nighttime free cooling timer (after stop) <sup>(b)</sup>	Precool/preheat <sup>(c)</sup>	Precool/preheat duration <sup>(k)</sup>	Initial fan speed <sup>id</sup>	Yes/No setting for duct connection with VRV system	Setting for cold areas (fan operation when heater thermostat is $OFF)^{(l)}$	Fan operation during defrost/oil return/hot start $^{(l)}$	Nighttime free cooling (fan settings) <sup>(6)</sup>	Target temperature for independent nighttime free cooling <sup>(b)</sup>	Central zone link	Preheat time extension <sup>(d</sup>		External signal <sup>iel</sup> J <i>C</i> /12	Direct power ON	Autorestart <sup>(h)</sup>	Output signal to external damper (X24A)	Indication of ventilation mode	Automatic ventilation air flow mode	Fresh-up mode	External input terminal function selection <sup>(i)</sup> (JC/J1)	BRP4A50A output switching selection (between X3 and X4)	(between X1 and X2)	EKVDX connected? <sup>(i)</sup>	Filter contamination check	C = -11 rot woint /ith EV/PV/	Cooling set point (with EKVUA)
SW		0	1	2	m	4	5 <sup>(e)</sup>			9	~	∞	6		0	1	2	m	4	9	7	∞	6		10	11	6	CT
Mode		17(27)						17(27)					18(28)					18(28)						18(28)				

# 5 | Technical data

	15	1		Step 8	Step 15	Step 15		Step 8	I	1	I	I			1	iKVDX	
	14			Step 7	Step 14	Step 14		Step 7	I	I		1	1	I		the E up nu	
	13	I		Step 6	Step 13	Step 13		Step 6	I	I	I	I	I	I	I	"Gro	
	12	I	oeration	Step 5	Step 12	Step 12	peration	Step 5	I	I	I	I	1	I	1	unnect e, see	
	11	I	ontinuous o	Step 4	Step 11	Step 11	ontinuous o	Step 4	I	I	I	I	I	I	1	sed. nual. cedur.c	
	10	I	Ŭ	Step 3	Step 10	Step 10	Ŭ.	Step 3	I	I	1	I	1	I	I	ual. 561 on ma or wh	
	60	I		Step 2	Step 9	Step 9	-	Step 2	1	I	I	1	1	ı	1	on man RC301E efriger: on trol settin	
	08	1		Step 1	Step 8	Step 8	-	Step 1	1	I	1	I		1	1	l operation i operation i operation i operation i operation i operation operation operation operation operation operation i operation operation i oper	
	07	1	Run 1/2 (15 min.	OFF/ 15 min.	Step 7	Step 7	Run 1/2 (15 min.	(NO	1	-600	I	I		I	1	d. tallation and ation manua uNOT be don uired in case nstallation rindividua ntroller. Fi	
SW position <sup>(a)</sup>	90	1	Run 1/3 (20 min.	UFF/10 min. UN)	Step 6	Step 6	Run 1/3 (20 min. OFE/10 min_ON)	100 - 110 - 100 - 100	I	-400	1	I		I	1	ing is disable EKVDX. he EKVDX Ins ion and opera s setting CAN y OFF) is requ te EKVDX In modes for dividual co l'controller	
-	05	Auto ESP selection and filter contamination target detection with new fan step	Run 1/4 (22.5 min.	UPF/ / / MIN. ON)	Step 5	Step 5	Run 1/4 (22.5 min. OFE/7 5 min. ONI	/NO 11111 C1 / 1 10	1	-200	1	I	Control by CO <sub>2</sub> sensor	I	I	ime free cool nected to an EKVDX. See t VDX Installat ier based. Thi ner based. Thi the setting the setting ode 30=inc the centra	
-	04	Filter contamination target detection with fan step 1-15	Run 1/6 (25 min. OFF/5	min. UN)	Step 4	Step 4	Run 1/6 (25 min. OFF/5	(M) (M)		+600	NOT allowed	Heater operation		1	1	ctive, the night d when it is con use T1 T2 of the VDX. See the EH VDX. See the EH tically and is tim tically and is tim tically and is tim step 1 to 15). erant is used. Se T2 of the EK T2 of the EK T2 of the C T2 of the C	
_	03	Timer based check	Run 1/10 (27 min.	UFF/3 min. UN)	Step 3	Step 3	Run 1/10 (27 min. F			+400	Allowed	Heater operation	I		1	of the VAM is a nunit is disable. 8. -0-7. Instead, L -0-7. Instead, L -1 T2 of the EK ormed automa or of fan curves case R32 refrig tead, use T1 etween pare 00=group co the ON/OFF	
-	02	Pressure-based check with new fan step	Run 1/15 (28 min.	UFF/2 min. UN)	Step 2	Step 2	Run 1/15 (28 min. OFF/2 min_ON)	011/2 111111 011)	OFF	+200	NOT allowed	OFF	I	NO	NO	I. safety system aim ventilation to 1, 3, 4, 7 or y air low/Exha J. Set to 18(28 elevention always be 0FF always be OFF always be OFF se and selection ris required in be used. Ins be used. Ins be used. Ins o settings, b oller: mode all of either	
	01	Pressure-based check with fan step 1-15	OFF		Step 1	Step 1	OFF		NO	0	Allowed	OFF	I	OFF	OFF	ey background f and the R32 f the heat recl f the heat recl - 5 or 4. -5 can be set 1 annot be used annot be used annot be used (28)-10-2. contaminatio ld setting will ire drop curve is f cannot is f cannot ed as group itral contro ation manu	
SW description		Filter contamination inspection <sup>%)</sup>	Low tap <sup>(i)</sup>		Supply fan step <sup>(m)</sup>	Exhaust fan step <sup>(m)</sup>	24-hour ventilation <sup>(i)</sup>		Humidification ON/OFF setting	Reference concentration shift for ventilation air flow control (ppm)	Stop ventilation by automatic ventilation air flow control	Fan residual operation	Normal ventilation tap on automatic ventilation air flow control	R32 safety system <sup>(n)</sup>	Fresh-up operation <sup>(k)</sup>	ctory settings are marked with a gr case VAM and EKVDX are combined e preheating/precooling function o hen connected to an EKVDX, set to hen connected to an EKVDX, 17(27) upply air/Exhaust air), e.g. Low/Low hen connected to an EKVDX, JC/J1 of an connected to an EKVDX, JC/J1 of an connected to an EKVDX, Set to ren connected to an EKVDX, set ting ren connected to an EKVDX, setting if the technical data book for press ren connected to an EKVDX, setting ren connected to an EKVDX, setting	
de SW		0	-		2	m	4		5 (6i	7	∞	∞	б	15	0	<ul> <li>a Fat</li> <li>b Th</li> <li>c Th</li> <lic li="" th<=""> <li>c Th</li> <li< td=""><td></td></li<></lic></ul>	
Mo		19(2							19(2						IA	Not opt sett	

#### Settings for all configurations

Setting 17(27)-4: First choose the fan speed. Set it to high or ultra-high.

Flow "All other system configurations" is not applicable when combining VAM with EKVDX. Check the field settings for both units to make sure the combination of VAM and EKVDX is operational





#### About setting 19(29)-0-04 and 19(29)-0-05

- When you have configured setting 19(29)-0-04 successfully, the system automatically changes it to setting 19(29)-0-01.
- When you have configured setting 19(29)-0-05 successfully, the system automatically changes it to setting 19(29)-0-02.



#### NOTICE

If the ducting is changed, install clean filters and reconfigure setting 19(29)-0-04 or 19(29)-0-05. Otherwise the signal to clean the filters will come too soon. Do NOT adjust the dampers when setting 19(29)-0-04 or 05 is activated.

- If the controller is switched off while activating setting 19(29)-0-04 or 19(29)-0-05, configuration is aborted. When you switch the controller back on, the function starts from the beginning.
- Setting 19(29)-0-04 takes between 1 and 6 minutes to complete. You can check if the setting was completed successfully by checking if the field setting is changed to 0-01.
- Setting 19(29)-0-05 takes between 3 and 35 minutes to complete. You can check if the setting was completed successfully by checking if the field setting is changed to 0-02.



#### INFORMATION

While activating setting 19(29)-0-04 and 19(29)-0-05, the unit is set to heat recovery and the fan is on high or ultra high. After configuration, the settings are returned to what they were before the configuration.

- These settings can ONLY be activated with clean filters.
- For models 1500+2000, make sure that the ducting pressure drop of the top and bottom units is balanced.
- The function starts as soon as it is selected and the controller is on.
- Setting 19(29)-0-04 CANNOT be configured if the outside temperature is  $\leq$ -10°C, which is out of the operation range.
- Setting 19(29)-0-05 CANNOT be configured if the outside temperature is ≤5°C. In this case, error 65-03 is shown and the unit stops working. Change the setting to 19(29)-0-04.
- The setting CANNOT be configured if there are alerts or errors present.
- If booster fans are used, you can ONLY configure setting 19(29)-0-03.
- Settings 19(29)-0-04 and 19(29)-0-05 can be configured for multiple units with 1 controller.

#### Independent system



- **b** Slave controller for VAM
- **c** Switch position: Master **d** Switch position: Slave



Maximum length of connection line: 500 m е

VAM VAM heat reclaim ventilation unit





#### 1-group linked-control system

# NOTICE

Group control connection is NOT allowed with EKVDX indoor units.

- The air conditioner's controller can be used to control up to 16 units, a combination of indoor air conditioner units and heat reclaim ventilation units.
- You can configure initial settings for the functions of the VAM units. These functions are precool/preheat, ventilation air flow, ventilation mode, and freshup. Use the air conditioner's controller to configure the initial settings for the VAM units. See Field settings.

а b

VRV

VAM



- a Controller for air conditioner
   b Controller for air conditioner
- b Controller for air conditionerc Maximum length of connection line: 500 m
- VRV VRV indoor unit
- **VAM** VAM heat reclaim ventilation unit

#### Linked control with more than 2 groups

# 

Group control connection is NOT allowed with EKVDX indoor units.

To change the settings, P1/P2 of the controller MUST be connected to the VAM units. The controller can be removed after the settings are changed.

If the unit is supposed to operate without controller, do NOT switch it on with the controller connected. Otherwise, the unit will give an error once the controller is removed, because it will keep on searching for the controller signal. To resolve the error, perform a power reset without the controller connected.

- The optional adapter PCB (KRP2A51) must be connected to 1 unit that is part of the F1/F2 loop. This unit can be an air conditioner or a VAM unit.
- Up to 64 units, a combination of air conditioners and VAM units, can be connected to the F1 and F2 terminals.
- KRP2A51 ONLY has ON/OFF control. If the VAM units run in automatic mode, they have a fixed setpoint. If P1/P2 is NOT connected, the setpoint of the air conditioner is unknown.
- Use the air conditioner's controller to configure the initial settings.



- **a** Controller for air conditioner
- **b** Maximum length of connection line: 1000 m
- c Adapter PCB for remote control (KRP2A51)
- VRV VRV indoor unit
- **VAM 1** VAM heat reclaim ventilation unit 1
- **VAM 2** VAM heat reclaim ventilation unit 2



Activate setting 17-8-02 to set the central zone link to ON. No further settings are required.

#### **Direct duct connection**



The line connections are the same as for the 1-group linked-control system.



- a Controller for air conditioner
- **b** Controller for air conditioner
- c Maximum length of connection line: 500 m
- VRV VRV indoor unit
- VAM VAM heat reclaim ventilation unit

#### **Initial settings**

Activate below setting for direct duct connection. This direct duct configuration ONLY works if P1/P2 is connected.

- Mode number: 17
- Switch number: 5
- Position number: 07

#### **Other functions**

Like in a 1-group linked-control system, other VAM functions can also be configured.

#### **Central control system**

To change the settings, P1/P2 of the controller MUST be connected to the heat reclaim ventilation units. The controller can be removed after the settings are changed.

If the unit is supposed to operate without controller, do NOT switch it on with the controller connected. Otherwise, the unit will give an error once the controller is removed, because it will keep on searching for the controller signal. To resolve the error, perform a power reset without the controller connected.





- a Outdoor unit
- **b** Controller
- c Central controller for all units
- **VRV** VRV indoor unit
- EKVDX EKVDX indoor unit
  - VAM VAM heat reclaim ventilation unit

#### All control



- **a** Controller for air conditioner
- **b** Maximum length of connection line: 1000 m
- c Schedule timer (DST301B51)
- **d** Adapter PCB for remote control (KRP2A51)
- e On/Off signal
- **VAM 1** VAM heat reclaim ventilation unit 1
- VAM 2 VAM heat reclaim ventilation unit 2
  - VRV VRV indoor unit

If you use the adapter PCB (KRP2A51) or schedule timer (DST301B51), the following is valid:



- Up to 64 units, a combination of air conditioners and VAM units, can be connected to the F1 and F2 terminals.
- This system does NOT require group number setting for central control (autoaddress system). The central control group number is automatically assigned if the adapter PCB (KRP2A51) or schedule timer (DST301B51) is connected.
- The adapter PCB and the schedule timer CANNOT be used together. The adapter PCB allows on/off control. The schedule timer allows on/off control with a weekly schedule.
- The adapter PCB can be connected to the electric component mounting base of either the VAM unit or the air conditioner.

#### All/individual control



- **b** Maximum length of connection line: 1000 m
- c Schedule timer d ON/OFF controller
- **VAM 1** VAM heat reclaim ventilation unit 1
- **VAM 1** VAM heat reclaim ventilation unit 1 **VAM 2** VAM heat reclaim ventilation unit 2
- VRV 1 VRV indoor unit 1

If the ON/OFF controller (DCS301B51) is used, the following is valid:

- Up to 64 units, a combination of air conditioners and VAM units, can be connected to the F1 and F2 terminals.
- Up to 4 ON/OFF controllers can be connected.
- A central control group number must be assigned to each VAM unit and air conditioner. See "The central control group number setting" in the operation manual of the ON/OFF controller for information about setting the group number.
- Use the air conditioner's controller to configure the initial settings.

DAIKIN

#### Example

Setting the central control group number 2-05 to 1:

Use the local setting on the controller to set the central control group number.

Mode number: 00

Central control group number: 2-05

#### Zone control



- Up to 64 units, a combination of air conditioners and VAM units, can be connected to the F1 and F2 terminals.
- Zone 1 and 2 can be controlled independently with the central controller.

#### Zone 2

The VAM units operate in the zone-linked mode, as described in "Linked control with more than 2 groups" [ $\triangleright$  95].

Initial settings:

 A central control group number must be assigned to each VAM unit and air conditioner. See "The central control group number setting" in "All/individual control" [▶ 98] for information about setting the group number.

- For the ventilation air flow setting, follow the procedure described in "All control" [▶ 97].
- For zone setting using the central controller, see the operation manual of the central controller.
- The central controller can be used to control individual units in the zone for ventilation.

#### **EKVDX option - extra settings**

In case of a EKVDX +VAM combination, the following specific VAM settings can be made:

#### Automatic cool-heat switching function

The automatic cool-heat switching function, in case the EKVDX option is used, is only possible using the user interface.

To use this function, do the following:

- **1** Choose setting 1c-01-02.
- **2** The Auto operation mode logic depends on the set setpoint logic via the Madoka app.
- Single set point (shared set point heating and cooling).
- Dual set point (set point for heating and cooling).
- **3** Choose guard timer duration using setting 1e-11.
- **4** To switch the temperature
- with the guard timer (=SP C1): choose setting 1c-14.
- immediately (=C1 C2): choose setting 1c-15.

Mode	SW	SW description	01	02	03	04
1c	01	Which thermistor to show on user interface	Indoor unit (R1T)	User interface	_	_
1c	14	User interface auto mode: switching temperature with guard timer	0.5°C	1°C	1.5°C	2°C
1c	15	User interface auto mode: immediate switching temperature	0.5°C	1°C	1.5°C	2°C
1e	11	User interface auto mode: guard timer duration	15 min	30 min	60 min	90 min

#### Fan tap/air flow rate

In case the heat reclaim ventilation unit is combined with an EKVDX, the airflow rates in the L-tap are the same as in the H-tap. No action from the user is needed.

To determine the heat reclaim ventilation unit fan tap/airflow rate in case of combination with EKVDX:

Via user interface:

- Weak (L/H tap)
- Strong (UH tap)

Onsite setting:

### 5 Technical data

Mode	SW	SW position	Description
17(27)	4	1	L/H-tap
		2	UH-tap





<u> </u>	 	 					 	 	_	 					-	_	_	_	_			_		-	$\rightarrow$	
																		_	_					_	_	
										 														$\rightarrow$	$\rightarrow$	
-		 					 _	 		 			_		_	_	_	_	_			_	_	-	_	
																		_					_	_	_	
	-	 		-					_	 	-	_							_					-	-	
		 						 	_	 			_		_	_	_	_	_			_	_	_	_	
																									_	
-	 	 			-		 			 									_				-	-	-	
	 	 					 _	 		 			_		_	_	_	_	_			_	_	_	_	
																									_	
																								$\neg$	$\neg$	
										 					$\neg$				_				$\rightarrow$	+	$\rightarrow$	
		 								 					-+			_						-+	$\rightarrow$	
																								_		
											_								_					-	-	
-	_	 					 _	 	_	 			_	_	_	_	_	_	_			_	_	-	_	
															_								_	_	_	
-										 									_					$\rightarrow$	-	
								 	_	 		_			_	_	_	_	_		_	_	-	-	-	
																		_	_				_	_	_	
-		 					 -			 	_								_					$\neg$	$\neg$	
<u> </u>		 					 	 	_	 		_			-	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	-	-	-	
								 							_			_					_	_	_	
																								$\neg$	$\rightarrow$	
-		 								 					$\rightarrow$				_				$\rightarrow$	$\rightarrow$	$\rightarrow$	
		 													_								_	$\rightarrow$	$\rightarrow$	
																								$\neg$	$\neg$	
-			-		-										$\neg$				_					$\rightarrow$	$\rightarrow$	
									_						$\rightarrow$	_	_	_	_				_	$\rightarrow$	$\rightarrow$	
																								$\neg$	$\neg$	
					-									$\neg$	$\rightarrow$								$\rightarrow$	+	$\rightarrow$	
										 				$ \rightarrow$	$\rightarrow$	_	_	_	_				$\rightarrow$	$\rightarrow$	$\rightarrow$	
-										 		_			-				-				-	$\neg$	$\rightarrow$	
									_						$\rightarrow$	_	_	_					_	$\rightarrow$	$\rightarrow$	
																								$\neg$	$\neg$	



<u> </u>	 	 					 	 	_	 					-	_	_	_	_			_		-	$\rightarrow$	
																		_	_					_	_	
										 														$\rightarrow$	$\rightarrow$	
-		 						 	_	 			_		_	_	_	_	_			_	_	-	_	
																		_					_	_	_	
	-	 		-					_	 	-	_							_					-	-	
		 						 	_	 			_		_	_	_	_	_			_	_	_	_	
																									_	
-	 	 			-		 			 									_				-	-	-	
	 	 					 _	 		 			_		_	_	_	_	_			_	_	_	_	
																									_	
																								$\neg$	$\neg$	
										 					$\rightarrow$				_				$\rightarrow$	+	$\rightarrow$	
		 								 					-			_						$\rightarrow$	$\rightarrow$	
											_								_					-	-	
-	_	 					 _	 	_	 			_	_	_	_	_	_	_			_	_	-	_	
															_								_	_	_	
-										 									_					$\rightarrow$	-	
								 	_	 		_			_	_	_	_	_		_	_	-	-	-	
																		_	_				_	_	_	
-		 					 -			 	_								_					$\neg$	$\neg$	
<u> </u>		 					 	 	_	 		_			-	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	-	-	-	
								 							_			_					_	_	_	
																								$\neg$	$\rightarrow$	
-		 								 					$\rightarrow$				_				$\rightarrow$	$\rightarrow$	$\rightarrow$	
		 													_									$\rightarrow$	$\rightarrow$	
																								$\neg$	$\neg$	
-			-		-										$\neg$									$\rightarrow$	$\rightarrow$	
									_						$\neg$	_	_	_	_				_	$\rightarrow$	$\rightarrow$	
																								$\neg$	$\neg$	
					-									$\neg$	$\rightarrow$								$\rightarrow$	+	$\rightarrow$	
										 				$ \rightarrow$	$\rightarrow$	_	_	_	_				$\rightarrow$	$\rightarrow$	$\rightarrow$	
-										 		_			-				-				-	$\neg$	$\rightarrow$	
									_						$\rightarrow$	_	_	_	_				_	$\rightarrow$	$\rightarrow$	
																								$\neg$	$\neg$	

# DAIKIN EUROPE N.V.

Zandvoordestraat 300, B-8400 Oostende, Belgium

ESIE22-07 2022.02

draft - 07/02/2022 15:12